HISTORY OF SANTA CLARA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA.

BOUNDARIES.

BOUNDARIES.

The boundaries of Santa Clara County, as defined by the set of the Legislature establishing the same, are as follows: Beginning at a point opposits the mouth of the San Francisquito Creek, being the common corner of Alameda, San Maireo, and Santa Clara Counties; these easterly to a point at the head of a slough, which is an arm of the Bay of San Francisca it is based, making into the mainland in front of the Gagara ranches; themee easterly to a lone sycamore-tree, that stands in a ravine between the dwellings of Fishencia and Valentine Gegara; thence easterly up said ravine to the top of the mountains, as surveyed by Horace A. Higley; thence on a direct line easterly to the common corner of San Jaquajni, Stanislans, Alameda, and Santa Clara Counties, on the summit of the Coast Range to the northeast corner of Monterey County is then conthem to contain the content of the Coast Range to the northeast corner of Monterey County is then conthem to monthly of Monterey County in the southeast Corner of Santa Cruz County; thence northwesterly, following the summit of the Santa Cruz County; thence northwesterly, following the summit of the Santa Cruz Mountains to the head of San Francisquito Creek; theese down said creek to its mouth; thence in a direct line to the place of beginning. Containing about thirteen hundred square miles. Since the act establishing the boundaries of Santa Clara County, on the south San Benito County, carved out of the eastern portion of Monterey County, has been created, but, with the exception of names, the southern boundary has not been changed. The eastern line, dividing Santa Clara County, has been created, but, with the exception of names, the southern boundary has not been changed. The eastern line, dividing Santa Clara Forn Stanislans County, has never been exactly fixed, the topography of the county not been changed. The eastern line, dividing Santa Clara Forn Stanislans County, has never been exactly fixed, the topography of the county not been changed. The eastern line,

DESCRIPTION OF SURFACE, TIMBER, ETC.

DESCRIPTION OF SURFACE, TIMBER, ETC.

The Santa Clara Valley runs through the centre of the County from north to south, and obtain its greatest width, about fifteen miles, when at San José. On the east are the mountains of the Coast Range, wooded on their highest elevations and interspersed with numerous small valleys and casions, which afford arable and grazing land. On the west lies the Santa Cruz Range, mountains of a more rugged character, but still abounding with spots of noil of unequaled fertility. These two ranges, at a distance of about twelve miles south of San José, approach to within three miles of each other, but six miles farther on they again recede to a distance of about six miles. A reference to the maps will give the exact lecation of these mountains. Within the limit of the County the highest elevation of the Coast Range is Mount Hamilton, four thousand four hundred and forty-eight feet high, and of the Santa Cruz Range, Mounts Chonal and Bache, respectively three thousand five hundred and hirty and three thousand four hundred and thirty feet high.

The timber of the western range is principally redwood, which furnishes a superior lumber in almost leachaustible quantities. Oak and madrofa also abound. The timber of the western range consists mostly of scattering groves of oak, but not of a character or quantity to serve any purpose but for fuel.

PRINCIPAL STREAMS.

The principal streams of the County are the Coyote, Guadalupe, Los Gatos, Llagas, Uvas, and Penitencia. A reference to the map will give the location of these water-courses.

EARLY HISTORY.

We have thus far spoken of our subject as a County, but its existence as a County dates only from 1850, while the history of civilization within its limits is a handred years old, and counts its beginning from the time of the establishment of the miseion at Santa Chara, in 1777.

Previous to that time the County was inhabited by a tribe of Indians called the Olhones or Costanes, who appear to have lived as savages usually do, on spontaneous fruits and what they could secure by hunting and fishing. California was considered a portion of Mexico and subject to Spain, which, at the time referred to, was under the rule of Charles IV. In November, 1776, Father Pein, a Franciscun priest, visited this valley for the purpose of establishing one of those missions which were the pioneers of civilization of the New World. The site selected was at what is now the town of Santa Chara, and on the 12th day of January, 1771, a cross was raised, an altar was creeded, the first mass was said by Father Tomas de la Pein, and the mission was established,—although the formal ceremonies did not take pince until it with a part. The object of these missions was, on the part of the clergy, to Christianize and civilize the Indians, teaching them agriculture and such other arts and

industries as would make them useful citizens, while their souls were to be rescued by inculcating a disposition to pious observances. The good Fathers seem to have found a very tractable set of pupils in the Indians of this valley, as we have no recent of any resistance to their efforts on the part of the natives, and the work appears to have gone on smoothly, except when, now and then, the civil or military authorities thought they could do better than the church in the work of civilization.

About this time the Spanish government came to the conclusion that Upper California night be made to yield some revenue to the crown, and following out the idea, began to offer inducements to soldiers and settlers who would locate in those portions of the territory set apart for that purposa. These inducements consisted of monthly pay, stock and agricultural implements, and grants of land.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE PUEBLO OF SAN JOSE.

The Governor of Upper California, Don Felipe Neve, had recommended to the King of Spain, through the Viceroy of Mexico, as a nuitable aite for a pueblo a point on the Guadinpe River, three-quarters of a loague from the mission of Santa Clara, and at the same time asked authority to make the location. It seems that no immediate reply was returned to this communication, and the Governor occupying an isolated position, and not desiring to be dependent on uncertain communication with the city of Mexics for subsistence, resolved to establish the town, and take chances of his acts being confirmed. If a thought it would be a good thing to establish a colony in this rich valley, which would be able to furnish not only supplies to the forces at the presidio at San Francisco, but also to add something to the royal revenue. This, be thought, would be a sufficient occuse for acting without orders. Accordingly he directed Don José Moraga, then Lieutenant Commanding at San Francisco, to take from his command nine soldiers and two settlers, and three others, who were to be picked up for this special duty, and proceed to this valley. On the 26th of November, 1777, Lieutenant Moraga and his band went into camp on the Guadalupe at the point designated, and announced the camp as a Pachlo, calling it San José de Gasdalupe. The action of the Governor in establishing the Pueblo without waiting for orders was subsequently confirmed.

into camp on the Guadalupe at the point designated, and announced the camp as a Pachò, calling it San José de Gasalaupe. The action of the Governor in establishing the Pueblo without waiting for orders was subsequently confirmed.

In 1788, Don Pedro Pages being Governor of California, an official division of real estate was made among the oine founders of the Pueblo, a boas lot and four sucress of land for cultivation being given to each. The names of the founders, as described in the report of distribution, were Ignacio Archulets, Manuel Gonzales, José Tiburcio Vasquez, Manuel Ameaquita, Antonic Romero, Bernado Rosales, Francisco Avila, Sebastian Alvitre, and Candio Alvives. A flac-simile of the original plat, showing the division lines, appears in another part of this work. The Pueblo originally was four square lengues, and all the hands not distributed were to be used in common for pasturage. In 1792, Vancouver visited the mission and the Pueblo, and we learn from his report that at that time the settlers cultivated wheat, maize, peas, and beans, that they plowed with inferior plows, turned the soil once over, then smoothed the same down with a barrow; and in the months of November and December they sowed wheat in deille or broadcast on the even surface, and scratched it in with a barrow. Oats and barley they did not cultivate.

The original site of the Pueblo was about a mile and a quarter north of the present centre of the city, but owing to the lowness of the land, which was often submerged in the winter-time from the overflowing of the Gundalupe River, permission was sacked, and obtained, to move the location to the higher ground on the south. According to Frederic Hall, to whose scallent work, "The History of San José and Storroundings," we are indebted for many facts and figures, the removal was accomplished in 1707, the central point of the new location heim near the corner of Market and San Pernando Streets. About this time a dispute arose between the Fathers at the mission and the people at the Pueb

It was but a short time after the settlement of the Pueblo before the fertility of the seil began to demonstrate itself, yielding the richest harvests on the slightest provocation. We find, within six years after the planting of the orchards, that the production of fruit was a large that it defied consumption in its natural state. The idea naturally occurred to the people that some of it could be made use of in the manufacture of spirituous liquor. This, however, could not be done without consum from the commandant of the province. We find that on the 19th of August, 1806, permission was granted to one Manuel Higgorra to make one borrel of peach brandy. This was probably the first lot manufactured in this County, as we take it for granted that Manuel availed himself of this permission.

permission.

The first public school that we have any report from was established in 1811, Bafael Villavicencio, who is described as an "infirm corporal," being the teacher. Rafael was to teach the children of the Pueble to read, write, and the Dectrine, and was to receive for his services eighteen reales per annum from such head of family, to be paid in grain or four. One of the conditions prescribed by the decree establishing this school was, that during the time the children were at school their fathers were to be exempt from responsibility to 60d on their account, the teacher assuming this responsibility as part of his contract.

EARLY SETTLERS.

Up to this time the settlers had been either spaniards or Mexicans, and nearly if not all had been recurited under the regulations prescribed by the Spanish government, when the Pueblo was first established. The first foreigner, of whom we have any account, who settled in this valley was John Gilroy. He was not only the first foreign settler in the Santa Chars Valley, but in California. He was a Seetchman, and landed at Monterey in 1814 from a ship belonging to the Hudson Bay Company. He was ill of the scurry and was left on shore to be cured. Thence he found his way into this valley and became a permanent settler. He married into the Orteog family, and settled on the Ranche San Yaidro, a short distance east from the city which now bears his name. He accumulated was property in lands and herels, but finally, in 1899, died in absolute want.

Robert Livermore came to the Pueblo in 1820.

short dishnote east from the city when he we need as hands. He secumilated want property in lainds and herds, but finally, in 1899, died in absolute want.

Robert Livermore came to the Pueble in 1816, but was only here for a short time. His final settlement was about twenty miles northeast of San José, in the valley which now bears his name.

Prior to the year 1820 this valley had no commercial importance. Nothing scarcely was sold. The principal business was agriculture, and whatever was accumulated was in the shape of berds and lands. At that time there was not a vehicle in the valley that had wheals with spokes; nor was there a foot of sawed lumber in the country. Stoves and freplaces in the houses were not known until 1846. Neither was there a footring-mill in all this region. In 1820 a traffle in hides and tallow began to grow up, which assumed some importance.

In 1822 accessed the second of the story of the church at Santa Clara. This appears to have been an exaggeration. It cracked and injured the walls, but did not destroy the church.

In 1821 the Maxicans achieved independence from Spain; but the change of rulear created he particular excisement among the colonies of California. Up to December, 1828, there had been 8270 haptisms, 2376 marriages, and 6468 deaths recorded at the mission at Santa Clara.

The first census or enumeration of inhabitants of which we have any knowledge was in 1831. At that time there were at the Pueble 166 men, 145 women, 103 boys, 110 girls, making a total of 524. The crops raised that year were 2000 bushels of wheat, 2000 bushels of corn, and about 300 bushels of hears. The stock cumber 4444 she and entalle, 2886 head of horses, and 124 mules. The average price of a mule or saddle-horse water dollars; an or or cow, the oldinars and a sheep, two dollars. The chief business was raising cattle for their hides and tallow. They also found a ready marks for the feel grain, which was principally purchased by the Russian Fur Cempany, at about two dollars and twenty-live cents per d

by the Russian For company, as company, as per bushel.

After 1830 the number of foreigners began to increase, their whole number at that time being estimated at about seventy. John Burton, afterwards Alcalds, came in that year. Harry Bee arrived in 1828. William Gulnac, J. Alex. Forbes, and James Weeks, came in 1838. Thomas Doak, William Welch, Nicolas Dodera, Matthew Fallon, William Smith, Sphraim Pravel, Thomas Pepper, and an American called Bill, were here in 1833, but the date of their arrival is not known.

Thomas Brown, William Duly, and George Ferguson came in 1834. In 1835 the Pueble did not contain more than forty dwellings, including houses and hut of all kinds.

We have no record of any event of special importance locally from the contain t

houses and huts of all kinds.

We have no record of any event of special importance locally from
1895 to 1846. The growth of the country in population was slow, there
being at the mission of Santa Clara, in November, about eighty women
and children, twenty-4 we men, and about haff a dozen boys nearly grown.
The foreign immigration from 1893 to 1846 was about as follows:
In 1888, Henry Woods and Lawrence Carmichael; in 1841, Charles
Weber, Josiah Belden, Grove C. Cook, Peter Springer, William Wig-

gins, Henry Pitts, and James Rock; in 1848, Peter Davidson; in 1844, Thomas Fallen, Julius Martin and family, Thomas J. Shadden and family, Mr. Bennett and family, Captain Stephens, Dr. John Townsend and wife, Allem Montgomery and wife, Murin Murphy, Sr., with his wife, five sons, and two daughters (two of his sons, Martin and James, bringing their families), Jax. Miller and wife, Matthew Harlin, —Calvin, Jos. Peater, John, Michael, and Miss Sullivan, Oliver Magnet, —Hitcheok and family, Patrick Murtin, Sr., and two sons, Moses. Schallenburger, Thomas Hudson, and John Conners. The party with which Marth Murphy enne was the first that own succeeded in bringing wagons acress the mountains. Many had tried, but all had failed, and had been forced to shadned their teams. In 1846 about twenty new arrivals were noted, among whom were Prank Lightston, Wm. R. Basham, John Daubenbiss, and James Sokes. In 1846 about twenty new arrivals were noted, among whom were Prank Lightston, Wm. R. Basham, John Daubenbiss, and James Sokes. In 1846 there was quite a rush to this valley. We note among the arrivals this year, Isaac Brapham, Choa. White, Zachariah; Jones, Wm. McCatcheen, Jaz. F. Reed, Joseph Aram, Jacob D. Hoppe, Wm. Daniels, George Donner, William and Thomas Campbell, Peter Quivey, Edward Pyle, Thos. Kell, S. R. Moultrie, S. Q. Brougliton, and Dr. Isaball, nearly all of whom brought their families with them. Those who came with Wm. McCutcheon, Jaz. P. Reed, and George Donner constituted the famous Donner jazke, and were unable to force their way out, and for months they juy in the mountains make such a sad chapter in the history of this coast. This party was caught by the snow near Donner's Lake, and were unable to force their way out, and for months they juy in the mountains make such a sad chapter in the history of this coast. This party was caught by the snow near Donner's Lake, and were unable to force their way out, and for months they juy in the mountains make such a sad chapter in the history of this coast. This

MEXICAN WAR.

MEXICAN WAR.

The trouble between the United States and Mexico began to make itself felt in this valley in 1840, at the time General Fremont came into the country. Fio Pice, who was then Governor of California, bated the Country. Fio Pice, who was then Governor of California, bated the Americans with true Moxican cordiality. The grounds of his hatred, which he canomerated in May of this year in his address to the Departmental Assembly, will seem poculiar when read in the light of the experience of to-day. He said, "We find ourselves threatened by hordes of Yankee immigrants who have already begun to flock into our country, and whose progress we cannot arrest. Already have the wagons of that perfidious people social eth almost inaccessible summits of the Sierra Nevada, crossed the entire continent, and penetrated the fruitful Valley of Sacramento. What that astonishing people will next undertake I cannot say; but in whatever enterprise they embark they will be sure to be saccessful. Already these adventurent vorgaces, aprending themselves over a country that seems to suit their tastes, are cultivating farms, establishing vineprads, erecting assemble, swing up lumber, and doing a thousand other things that seem statural to them."

The culebrated "Bear Flag" was raised at Sacamo on the 14th of June, and the Americans declared California to be independent and free from Mexican stope. General José Castro, corannader of the Mexican troops, then had his headquarters at Santa Clara. He isseed a preclamation calling on the Mexicans to rally and wipe out the invaders, at the same time promising protection to the lites and property of those foreigners who stayed at home and did not aid or confort the Americans. Captain Thomas Fallon, then a resident of Santa Cras, crossed the mountains in the night, and came into this valley with twenty-two men, intending to capture the Paulobo in the name of the United States. Harring, however, that Castro, with about three hundred men, was on the alert, he withdrew his camp, which was a

alect, he withdrew his camp, which was about four miles and a half south of San José.

On the 7th of July, Commodore Sloat raised the United States flag over Moniserey, and issued an address, in which was recounted the recent defeat of General Arista by General Taylor. This new was conveyed to Castro, who immediately gave up the fight and left the country. Captain Fallon, who was witching Castro's movements, came into San José with a force of thirty-one men on the 11th of July, took possession of the Juzgado, and compelled the Alcalde to deliver up the archives. At that time there was not a single United States fag in the valley, but Captain Fallon procured one from San Francisco, and on the 13th he hoisted the stars and stripe over the court-house. Captain Fallon then left to join Fromont, but before going away be delivered the keys of the archives to Mr. James Stokes, who had been appointed magistrate.

During the remainder of 1846 the Pueblo was in fact a military camp, and the whole valley was a scene of war, but of rather a mild form compared to more medera campaigns. Two companies were formed, one consisting of thirty-three men, with Charles Weber as captain, and John M. Murphy as Rieutenant. This company was stationed in San José, having their quarters in an adole building on Lightston Street. The other company was under the command of Joseph Aram, and was quartered at Santa Clara. There was no regularly organized Mexican force in the field, but one Francisco Stanckes And collected a body of about three hundred mounted Californious, and was reasming the valley. Lieutenant Pinchney, of the United States ship "Ravannah," was sent to San José, and however, until Desember. About the 8th obedy of their was Martin Orcessan, affectwals a promisent edition of San José, and was Martin Orcessan, affectwals a promisent edition of San José, and was Martin Orcessan, affectwals a promisent edition of San José, and was Martin Orcessan, affectwals a promisent edition of San José, and was Martin Orcessan, affectwals and met was han, nowever, until December. About the can of that month Sanchez captared five men near the Seventeen-Mile House, among whom was Martin Corcoran, afterwards a prominent citizen of San José, and now proprietor of the Cameron House, at Santa Clara. On the 25th of December, hearing that Sanchez was between San José and San Fran-

cisco, Captain Weber started with his company to give him battle. After reaching a point near what is now the San Matee County line, it was secertained that the enemy had gone eastward into the Calaverra Valley. Captain Weber pushed on to San Francisco, and precured a reinforcement of about twenty marines and a small six-pound up from one of the United States vessels, and then returned in the pursuit of Sanchez. In the mean time the latter had resurred from the Calaversa and demanded the surrender of San José. Lieutenant Finckney refused, and after Sanchez had direid round the town he came to the onculusion not to attack, and withdrew his men. Captain Weber's company, returning from San Francisco, came in sight of Sanchez's force about twide miles north of San José, and immediately pressed forward to attack. Sanchez, however, commenced to retirent, and it was not usuall they reached the grove between what is now Milliken's Corners and Lawrence Station, that they could get within rifle-range. Sanchez's troops, although well mounted and supecior in number, were armed in a very unique manner. Some had supecior in number, were armed in a very unique manner. Some had words, some guns, and some lances. Captain Weber opened on them with the little cannon, but after a few dickanges the gun was thrown by the recoil from its carriage, and buried in the mud, and was of no further use. A brisk musked five was kept up on both sides, Sanchez all the time refusing to come to close quarters, and finally retreating at full speed towards the Santa Craz mountpins. The enemy lost four killed and five wounded. On Captain Weber's side only two were wounded. On Captain Weber's side only two were wounded. After this the Americans received reinforcements from various quarters, and on the 8th of January, 1847, Sanchez surrendered his whole force, including the prisoners he had captured near the Sevoutee-Mile House, and this ended the war between Americans and Mexicans in California.

EARLY AMERICAN GOVERNMENT

Home, and this ended the war between Americans and Mexicans in California.

EARLY AMERICAN GOVERNMENT.

California, under Mexican rule, was called a Department, and was divided into three Districts, Sants Chara County being in the Second. The chief magistrate of the Peache was called an Alcado. The Part Alcado of San José was Antonio Maria Pico, who was appointed in 1815. In 1816, Dolores Pacheco was Alcade, but was captured by Thomas Fallon, who turned the office over to James Stokes. There was no superior tribunal in California at that time, nor were there any courts of the first instance in San José until they were established by American authority in 1849. Justice was dispensed in a very primitive manner, and without regard to legal technicalities. There being a lack of pricion, summary penalties were imposed. These panalties were inflicted with considerable discrimination. Indian culprits were flogged, and other criminals fined for ordinary offenses, and occasionally a term of service in the chain-gang was awarded. John Burton, who was Aleaded in 1840: 1, held a court of unique character, if we are to judge by the records which he left. He was a man of little education, and if his judgments lacked legal avmenty they certainly struck at the bottom of the difficulties he was culted upon to adjudicate. We have not space for the pocular decisions remedered by him, but give as a sample the case of Juan Sesaldo ss. Maria de las Naves. The plantiff thinks the defendant, his wife, is about to abscond, and desires that she shall be brought into court and explain why show will not live with him. After hearing the testimony, Burton decided that the parties should be again united, and if they refused they should be imprisoned until they consented to live together. The defendant refused to comply with the Alcado's judgement, and was set to Julia. It is unferturate that no resord is found to enlighten posterity as to the final result of the imprisonment, as it would be intoresting to know how long the woman's plack held

Plour sold at twenty dollars per barrel, and other articles in proportion. During this year Zachariah Jones completed a saw-mill on Les Gaton Croek. It appears that lumber was exceedingly valuable at this time, the mere cost of hailing it from Campbell's or Jones's mills being one hundred dollars per thousand.

In December, 1848, the first snow fell in this valley. In this year the first brick houses were built in San José,—one by Mr. Obbern, at the corner of Fifth and St. John Street, between Fourth and Fifth. In 1840, many of the gold-hunters had returned from the mines, and the influx of new immigration made things itwell in and another Poeblo. The houses were few, many of the people living in tents est up along the lines of the streets. Plour advanced to fifty dollars per barrel. A pair of bosts was worth from sixteen to thirty-two dollars. Crimo increased, and exceutions were numerous, but the County throve notwithstanding.

SAN JOSÉ AS CAPITAL OF CALIFORNIA.

and executions were numerous, but the County throve notwithstanding.

SAN JOSÉ AS CAPITAL OF CALIFORNIA.

In November, 1840, the Constitution of the State was adopted, and San José we named as the location of the State capital. The Agustaniers or Town Council preposed to purchase a large adobe house, located on the south half of Lot 1, Block I, Hange I south, on the east side of Market Square, for the use of the Legislature. This house was built by Sainsevain & Riechon for a hotal, and they proposed to reat it for the use of the State for four thousand dollars per month. The Town Council, which had agreed to furnish suitable buildings for the State provided the capital was located in Sau José, though it more conomical to purchase the building. The price asked was thirty-four thousand dollars; but the city lacked the necessary fands, and the owners were unwilling to take the Pueblo authorities for security. Accordingly, a note for that amount hearing eight per cent. interest per month was executed by R. M. May, James F. Reed, Peter Quivey, J. D. Hoppe, J. C. Cobh, K. H. Dimick, Ben Cor., W. H. Eddy, G. C. Cook, Isuae Branham, P. Sainsevain, Peter Davidson, William McCutcheon, Jeseph Arson, David Dickey, Charles White, P. Lighiston, and R. C. Keys, and a deed of the prunises was made to Messra. Aram, Beldua, and Reed, in trust for the purchases to be conveyed to the Pueblo whenever it should pay for the same. It was from this purchase that the so-called *Porty Thioves* litigation originated. After the removal of the explical from San José, the city substitutes of the building ecceptied by the Legislature to the County for thirty-eight thousand delhars, the purchase-money to be applied to the liquidation of the note above referred to. It appears that this money was not so applied, and the trustees above named such the city to obtain the forecleaure of a mortage occurrent of them by the Town Council in 1850, to secure the purchase price of the preperty used by the State. A decrea of forecleance into a land company,

Joseph Benceles, and was an action to constant the orecessive greeners are payment of five thousand dollars, with interest at eight percent, per month.

The principal in-door annusement at this time was the fandange, while the out-door sport consisted mainly of bull and bear fights, which were held either on Market Plana or St. James's Square. The first Fourth of July after the adoption of the Constitution was celebrated in San José in good style. William Voorhies delivered an oration in English, James Jones one in Spanish, and a Mr. Sanford read the Decharation of Independence. Quite a number of murders were committed in this County during this year. We have not room for details, but have prepared a list of the excentions which have occurred, which list will be found further on.

During 1850 two stage lines were put on the road between San José and San Francisco, one by Ackley & Mortison, and one by John W. Whistman, the fare being thirty-two dollars, or, as the orthodox financial expression of that time would have it, "two ounces." In the winter of 1850-1, the roads became so bad that these lines were withfrawn and the travel to San Francisco went via Alviso, connecting at the latter point with the scamers: "William Robinson" and "New Star."

The first court-house under the American rule was built in 1850, on First Street, a little south of Santa Clara Street, and opposite Fountain Alley. The old Jungado was torn dewn during this year, and the adobes of which it was composed went fint the construction of the fine adobe building, built by John Hoppe, on the nerthesse corner of Market and Santa Clara Streets.

Santa Clara Streets.

The second session of the Legislature met on the 6th of January, 1862. By this time other towns wanted the State capital, and there was no end of scheming for its possession. Nowithstanding all that San José ceuld de, Valleje carried off the prize. The act of removal was passed February 14, 1862. In March, 1864, the question as to the legality of this removal was presented to the Supreme Court in the shape of a writ to construs the Act of Removal. A majority of the Genrt, Justices Heydenfelt and Wells, decided that the capital of the State was legally in San José. On the strength of this decision a writ of mandate was issued, out of the Third District Court, against all the State officers, communding them to remove their offices to San José, or show cause why they should not do so. After bearing the argument the Court sustained the

writ, holding that San José was the capital of the State. An appeal from this decision was taken to the Supreme Court. In the mean time Justice Wells had died, and his place on the bench was occupied by Justice Bryant. On this appeal the Supreme Court, Justice Heydenfelt dissenting, decided that San José was not the capital of the State. Not-withstanding this decision, the people of San José still think that they were llegally deprived of the capital, and some of them have hopes that it will again be sent back to them.

COUNTY ORGANIZATION.

COUNTY ORGANIZATION.

The organization of Santa Clara County occurred in 1851, and its government vested in what is known as the Court of Seastons, presided over by the County Judge and two associates, chosen from the Justices of the Peace of the County. A complete list of County Judges, Associates, Supervisors, etc., will be found in one of the tables on another page of this work. The boundaries first established included that territory known as Washington Township, in Alameda County, but in 1853, when Alameda County was created, this part was cut off from Santa Clara. This was against the wishes of the settlers, who have not yet become reconciled to the change.

From 1851, when Santa Clara was made a county, she began to take on a business aspect, and from that date may be counted her substantial growth. Immigration had swelled her population to about its thousand, and people who originally came with no intention of staying beyond a few months or years, began to consider it a permanent residence and to found homes. The growth of the County from that time to the present will be understood by a reference to the crop statistice presented elsewhere in this work.

The active of the county from the clark of 1859 and wowed.

homes. The growth of the County from that time to the present will be understood by a reference to the crop statistic presented elsewhere in this work.

The cholers first made its appearance in this valley in 1862, and proved faint be quite a number of the Indiana and Maxicana, but only a few of the white population died. This was also its lest appearance to this County. In this year the old Bella Union building, located on Santa Clara Street, was used as a court-house. It was moved from there to the old State-House in 1863, but the latter building having burned down, the building now known as the What Cheer House, at the corner of Second and San Fernando Streets, was purchased and made the Capitol of the County.

Two events occurred in 1853 that created considerable excitement. One was the completion of telegraphic communication between San José and San Francisco, and the other was the robbery of the County Treasury. William Alenhead was then Treasurer, and he announced to the people that on Sunday night, January 6, he was called to the door, and that upon opening it he was felled by a blow, and his pockets rifled of the key of the safe; that two men then went into the office and carried off twelve thousand dollars of the County's money. Although Akenhead effered a reward of one thousand dellars, the robbers were never apprehended, nor was any clue obtained as to their whereshout. This, together with the further fact that Akenhead himself left suddenly the next year, led some to believe that his story of the robbery partook something of the nature of a fable.

From 1858 to 1861 the County had a steady course of prosperity.

with the further fact that Akenhead himself left suddenly the next year, led some to believe that his story of the robbery partook something of the nature of a fable.

From 1863 to 1861 the County had a steady course of prosperity. What was accomplished during that period will more fully appear in the special topics treated below. In 1861 occurred what is known as the "Sottlers" War." By the terms of the treaty of Guadaloope Hidalgo, entered into between the United States and Mexico at the fermination of the war, and which gave California to the United States, it was provided that all grants of land made by the Spanish or Mexican government to their subjects in this State should be confirmed to the grantee, or their successors, by the United States, upon the proper showing. Soon after the treaty speculators began buying up these grants, the boundaries of many of which were not generally known outside of the speculators' ring. These purchasors commenced suits in ejectment against the settlers, many of whom had located upon tracts under the supposition that they were public lands. This litigation caused the settlers to form leagues throughout the State for mutual protection. In this County the purchasors of the Spanish title to the Chabolia Grant obtained judgment of ejectment against the settlers thereon, many of whom had coccupied the land for quite a lengthy period. This decree was rendered by Judge Mo-Kee, of the Third District Court for Santa Clara County, and write of exceution for possession were placed in the hands of the Sheriff securion. The Dose assembled at the court-house, but refused to arm themselves. The Sheriff securi that the sympathies of the people were with the settlers.

moned a posse of aix hundred men to nid him in its execution. Are posse assembled at the court-house, but refused to arm themselves. The Sheriff seeing that the sympathies of the people were with the settlers, distincted his posse. In the mean time the settlers, having heard of the intention to eject them from their homes, assembled to the number of nearly one thousand and paraded through the streets of the city. They nitation to get the mem from team comes, ascended to the nameer of nearly one thousand and paraded through the streets of the city. They were all armed,—some were on horses, some on foot, some in wagons,—the column being supported by one small cannon. It is add that leagues from other counties had sent men and arms to the assistance of the settlere of Santa Clara County, and were prepared to still further aid them if necessary. There was no violence offered, and the settlers returned to their homes with no other demonstration except the announcement that they meant "business." The matter was peacochly adjusted afterwards, but the demonstration had the effect of causing Judge McKee to adjourn the May term of the District Court, on the grounds that there was no profit in rendering judgments that could not be executed.

In 1862 the smallpox visited San José, Quite a number died from this loathsome disease, but the deaths were chiefly among those portions of the lower classes whose habits of uncleanliness invited the attack. During this year the Alameda Turnyike Company was organized. During the summer and fall they required and graded the Alameda Road, between San José and Santa Clara, at a cost of twenty-eight thousand six hundred and sighty-five dollars. They placed a toll-gate near where the fair grounds now are. This gate was removed and the road made free in July, 1868.

July, 1868.

It was in this year, also, that Jasper D. Gunn, City Marshal, absconded, having embezzied two thousand seven bundred and sixty-three dollars of the city money.

In 1866 the County rented the second story of the building at the southenest corner of Market and Santa Clara Streets, and used the same for County officers until the new court-house was finished, in 1868.

The first railroad train made its appearance in San José on the 16th day of January, 1864. This was on the San Francisco and San José Kaliroad, and was an event which caused much rejoicing among the people, whose best means of communication with San Francisco had been by stage, or by way of Alviso, on the bay. It was an event of great importance to all classes of the community. Santa Clara County had contributed two hundred thousand dollars to aid in the construction of this read, issuing therefore her honds at fitness years, and bearing interest at the rate of eight per cent, per annum. This read extended southwardly through the County, and reached Gilroy in 1889. In 1870 the road was extended through to Salinas, in Monterey County, and a branch constructed from Gilroy to Hollistor, in San Benito County. The Western Pacific Railcoad, or rather the branch road, running from San José to Niles, and there connecting with the line of the Western Pacific Railcoad, was constructed in 1869, the first train reaching San José Septembre 6 of that year. To aid in the construction of this road, Santa Chara County purchased one hundred and fifty thousand dollars worth of stock in the Western Pacific Railcoad (per start of general importance has transpired, except From 1869 on Indicat of general importance has transpired, except such as are fully referred to under special heads below, to which we refer, as we also do to the statistical tables, for detailed informatipered,

CRIMES AND PUNISHMENTS.

We have the record of nineteen executions of the death ponalty since the establishment of courts in this County, two of which were for the crime of grand larceny and the others for morder. The first executions of which we have any official notice occurred in 1849. In January of that year three Americans topped Thomas Fallon when on his way to Santa Cruz, and attempted to rob him. Although he had on his person some two thousand the hundred dollars, he managed by strategy to scaepe with a loss of only six ounces. These same highwaymen, after leaving Fallon, encountered two Germans, murdered them, and robbed them of eight thousand deltar in gold-dust. This was in the latter part of December, 1848. The robbers were captured, tried by jury in the Alcaide's Court in January, 1849, and were hung on the Plaza within three days after. In the summer of the same year Antonio Valencia was executed for the murder of a son of Edward Pyle. This nurde was committed in 1847, and the circumstances were briefly these: Valencia, young Pyle, and several native boys were plaging on the reaches of Anistasio Chaholla, and in the play Valencia injured the horse belonging to Pyle. Valencia was at this time about eighteen years old. After the play young Yepicatarted for home, and the other boys began to plague Valencia, saying that his mother would have to pay for the horse he had injured. Being gooded by the taunis of his companions, Valencia jurged on a horse and rode off, from which time nothing was seen of young Pyle vound in the play Valencia in the presence of the Alcabide and spectators. On the 80th of January, 1852, Theodore Bangarariagned before R. H. Dimick, Judge of the Court of First Instance, made the following confession: "I killed a stranger on the ranche of Chabolla. . . . Chabolla first told me to go and kill the stranger. I started right off, and knood him first, and dragged him a little ways, and then cut his thront." The remains were found buried among some stones and rubbish. Valencia was hou

Ostober 30, 1858, Ah Pah was executed for murder.

March 19, 1875, Tiburcia Vasquez was executed for murder. Vasquez was a noted outlaw, famous for his robberies and murders throughout the State. In the month of August, 1868, he, with a band of nor men, made a descent on the village of Tres Pinon, in San Benito County, robbed the store, murdered three men, and got off with his booty. He was pursued by the officers for some four hundred miles, but succeeded in clusting them. He was finally captured near Les Angeles, through the treachery of one of his friends. He was tried in this County at the January term, 1875, of the District Court, was convicted chiefly on the testimony of one of his accomplices, and executed in the jail-yard by Sheriff Adams.

CLIMATE AND SOIL OF SANTA CLARA COUNTY.

It would be impossible to give in words all the characteristics that go to make up the peculiar climate of Santa Clara County. The winters are not cold, nor are the summers hot. During the winter-time snow falls on the tops of mountains, but rarely extends down into the valley; indeed, there are but three instances within the last hundred years when this has occurred, and even then it disappeared almost as rapidly as it

fell. The winter months are called by some the rainy season, but this term would convey to the stranger a wrong impression; our winters, in reality, corresponding to the spring in other States. It is during this season that we receive all the rain that we get during the ontire year, but the intervals between the showers are usually of a longer duration than the showers themselves. It is during these intervals that farmers sow their grains. The average rainfull per annum is about fourteen inches. It is a usual thing to expect a slight shower during the month of May, but the regular rains coves at about the same time that States in the Bast receive their last fall of snow. From this time on, with the exception of a slight shower in November, no rain falls until about the middle of December.

December.

The long dry season from April to November is especially favorable to the maturing of crops of all kinds. It causes the death of all linesets and vermin, so destructive to fruit and grain in countries where the summer months are interspeesed with frequent showers. It affords the farmer ample time to harvest his crops without fear of injury from rain. It is this peculiarity also which, by theroughly ripening the grain, gives to California wheat its world-wide reputation for excellence, and which causes that perfection in California fruit which has excited the admiration of people in less favored States.

We give the following thermometrical observations of mean tempera-ture of the coldest and of the warmest months of an average year:

12½ г.м. 83,74 December...... 86.61 58.68 45.20

"' Sweet day, so pure, so calm, so bright, The bridal of the earth and sky."

The soil of this County is varied, but in all of its variations it loses none of its excellence. It is generally a learn made up of allavial deposits, and ranges in depth from four feet to an indefinite distance. In some portions of the valley it has been penetrated to a depth of ever a hundred feet, and the bottom was not found. Its adaptability to different products depends principally upon its proximity to water-courses. Most off it is easily worked, and, if ordinary care is used in its calitivation, yields beuntiful harvests to the husbandman. The capabilities of the soil will be more definitely ascertained by a reference to the table of productions published elsewhere in this work.

AGRICULTURE, HORTICULTURE, ETC.

A detailed sketch of the progress of agriculture in Santa Clara County would occupy more room than we can devote in the limits of a work like this. The agricultural possibilities of the County were what attracted the first settlers, both at the mission and at the Pueblo. The Spanish government wanted horses and provisions for its army, and it was this that induced the order directing the settlement by Lieutenaut Moraga.

We have given heretofore the amount and character of the products of one of the enritest years in the history of the County, and we give below a statement of the products for the year 1874; the comparison of the two will afford an excellent idea of the progress that has been made within that time.

within that time.

PRODUCTIONS

PRODUCTIONS.

There is scarcely anything that soil will produce that cannot be grown with more or less profit in this valley. Wheat will yield from thirty to eightly bushels per acre, and barley and other cereals in like preportion. Wheat was one of the first occasis raised in this valley, and there is land in this County that has been sown to this corp nearly every year since, and still preduces a good yield.

Certain portions of the County are well adapted to the growth of hops, which are pronounced by European dealers to be the best in the world. All kinds of vegetables yield largely. Tobacco, both Havama and Florida, is grown with great success, particularly in the southern portion of the County.

Of late years considerable attention has been been as a considerable attention.

Is grown with green acceptance of the country.

Of late years considerable attention has been given to the breeding of fine cattle, and the herds of Santa Clara County now carry off many of the best prizes at the State and other fairs. The Angora or Cashmere goat thrives well here, and many pounds of this valuable fleece are yearly shipped to the Eastern market.

Fruit culture was one of the carliest industries engaged in in this County. The Fathers at the mission planted the grapevine as one of their first agricultural efforts. Orchards of peach-trees followed, and other fruit in succession.

it in succession. The quality of the fruit, however, was very inferior; and although gequantities were grown, it was comparatively worthless. But within last fifteen or twenty years this has been changed. The old and thiest irees have either been cut down or rooted up, and nower

orchards of superior quality have taken their place, until now this interest is one of the most valuable in the County, yielding an immense revenue. Every variety of fruit known to the temperate zone reaches the greatest perfection in this valley, while many semi-tropical fruits are cultivated

with profit.

Santa Clara County supplies the Sinte with strawberries, being the only
County where this fruit is successfully grown in sufficient quantities to be
dignified by the name of a crop. Here there are many tracts, ranging
from ten to eighty acres, devoted exclusively to this fruit,—the yield of
which, during the height of the season, is about three hundred pounds
per day per acre. The average price during the whole season is about
seven and one-balf cents per pound. In 1871, the number of strawberry
plants returned by the assessor was twelve millions. Since that time this

lants returned by the assessor was twelve millions. Since that time this umber must have been at least doubled. The growing of plums and prunes has, of late years, assumed great aportance. The value of these fruits when dried, and the safety with which they can be shipped when green, has given a great impetus to this

Industry.

Viniculture is an important pursuit in this valley. The largest vineyard in area is that D. M. Harwood, in Union District, and contains one
hundred and forty acres; but the Almaden Vineyard, of one hundred
and twenty-eight acres, owned by Mr. Le Franc, contains more vines.
There are many other vineyards ranging from eventy-five acres down.
The old Mission grape has given place to the bast foreign varieties, which
in this County are said to thrive better than in their native soil.

Several experiments are being made in the culture of almonds; there
being several orchards lately planted of from fifty to one hundred and
forty acres; and there is every indication that the experiment will prove
pecuniarily successful.

pecuniarily successful.

Great as is the amount of fruit of various kinds now raised in this
County, it seems that this industry is only in its infancy. There are
thousands of acres of unoccupied land in the footbills and mountains
specially adapted for this purpose, and the value of which for fruit growing has just begun to be realized.

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS.

Land inclosed in 1874—acres, 614,174; land cultivated in 1874—acres, 206,967; wheat—acres, 174,885; wheat—bushels, 1,701,132; barley—acres, 12,903; barley—bushels, 128,197; oats—acres, 852; oats—bushels, 128,1946; rys—acres, 187; rys—bushels, 908; orn—acres, 113; corn—bushels, 5283; pess—acres, 7; pess—bushels, 103; potatoes—acre, 187; potatoes, tons, 8499; sweet potatoes—tons, 7; sweet potatoes—tons, 106; onlons—acres, 42; onlons—bushels, 5576; hay—acres, 29,209; hay—tons, 57,921; hops—acres, 312; hops—pounds, 43,797; tobacco—acres, 628; tobacco—pounds, 80,798; butter—pounds, 83,709; cheese—pounds, 514,007; wool—pounds, 112,027; honsy—pounds, 1592.

FRUIT-TREES AND VINES.

Apple-trees, 111,127; peach-trees, 47,082; peactrees, 25,095; plum-trees, 30,012; cherry-trees, 17,982; metarine-trees, 1611; quince-trees, 2200; apricot-trees, 376; fig-trees, 1417; lemon-trees, 1041; orango-trees, 3047; orive-trees, 3049; prum-trees, 6496; mulhery-trees, 1498; almond-trees, 2909; walnut-trees, 2709; grapevines, 1,237,879. Wine—gallons, 137,847.
Brandy—gallons, 78,687.
Distilleries, 5i; reallons, 17,946

Distilleries, 5; gallons, 17,946. Breweries, 2; gallons, 2,500,000.

LIVE-STOCK.

Horses, 11,213; mules, 483; asses, 24; colts, 2758; cows—2 years and over, 12,587; culves—under 2 years old, 5812; beef cattle—ster 2 years and over, 14,393; oxon, 49; total number of cattle, 45,819; sb. 61,644; Cashmere and Angora goats, 1634; hogs—1 year old and of 7782; hives of bees, 139.

IMPROVEMENTS.

Grist-mills, 9; steam-power, 7; run of stone, 22; water-power, 2; run of stone, 7; barrels of flour made, 64,875; bushels of corn ground, 30,96; bushels of barbey ground, 24,885.
Saw-mills, 5; steam-power, 8; water-power, 2; lumber sawad—feet, 20,016,190.

0,016,100.

Woolen-mills, 2; pounds of wool used, 163,905.

Raifroads, 4; miles in length, 724.

Acres of wheat sown in 1876, 178,865.

Acres of potates yearn in 1876, 14,074.

Acres of potates planted in 1875, 209.

Acres of potates planted in 1875, 209.

Acres of oats sown in 1876, 548.

Assessed value of real estate in 1876, \$19,332,633.

Assessed value of personal property in 1875, \$7,778,700.

Estimated population in 1876, \$1,000.

Estimated population in 1876, \$1,000.

Poll tax cellected in 1874, \$18,197.

ARTESIAN WELLS.

One of the greatest blassings that Santa Chara enjoys is its abundant supply of wholesome water, drawn from the subterranean streams by means of the artesian wells. This supply is inexhaustible, and would, with the inauguration of the proper system, be sufficient to Irrigate the entire valley. The first artesian well in the County was bored by the Merritt Brothers in 1854, on Fifth Street, near St. John Street. In the same year J. L. Shepherd bored a well about three miles east of San Jose. This well was eightly feet deep, and the water was forced into the pipe sixteen feet above the surface of the ground. But the most attonishing well that has ever been constructed in this valley was bored by G. A. Dahnay, in August, 1874, near San Fernando Street. It was sunk to a depth of sixty feet, when the water reaked up with a force that deficed all efforts to comfeet, when the water rashed up with a force that defied all efforts to confine it. It flooded all the surrounding lands, and the City Council declared it a maisance, and ordered that Dabney should pay a fine of fifty dollars for every day that he allowed the water to run. But this had no effect on the well, which for six weeks produced a stream four feet wide and six heches deep. At the end of this time the sinking of other wells in this sneighborhood reduced the flow of water to such an extent that this stream was got under centrol. Many of these wells furnish a sufficient head of water to reach and supply the second story of houses. We give the following list of some of the deepest wells in the County: at the old hospital grounds, 355 feet; Sirs. Hensley's, 302 feet; Mountain Viow, 460 feet; China Smith, 307 feet; James Murphy's, 437 feet; St. James's Square, 345 feet. Square, 316 feet.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

The public buildings of Santa Clara County are probably the finest in the State. The court-house was commenced in 1806, and completed in 1808, at a cess of one hundred and servery-three thousands seven hundred and thirty-seven dollars and ninety-six cents. It is of the Roman-Cerintibian order of architecture, and is situated on the west side of Pirits Street, opposite St. James's Square. The superstructure is of soild brick masonry, resting on a foundation of concrete six feet deep. The building is two stories in height, one hundred feet front, one hundred and forty feet in depth, including portice. Its height to the cornice is sixty feet, to the top of the dome one hundred and fifteen feet, the the top of the daystir one bundred and sighty-live feet. The diameter of the dome at the base is fifty feet; at the top seventeen feet. The front is broken into a portice seventy-six feet long, fifteen feet deep, supported by a Corinthian colonnade, and fanked by ficted pilasters, which support the entablature. The building has trenty-one rooms, two of which are used for court-rooms, the others being med for offices, all of which are finely finished and furnished. The principal court-room is sixty dwe feet long, forty-eight feet wide, and thirty-eight feet high, and is lighted from the ceiling by means of panels set with ground glass. It was built under the supervision of the architect, Levi Goodrich.

The County Jail, which is located immediately at the rear of the courishoss, was also built under the supervision of its architect, Mr. Goodrich.

tect, Levi Goodrich.

The County Juli, which is located immediately at the rear of the court-house, was also built under the supervision of its architect, Mr. Goodrich. Its construction was commenced in the spring of 1870, and was finished in 1871, at a cost of eighty thousand dollars. It is surrounded by a high brick wall, and for health, conveniences, and security is considered one of the first prisons in the State.

The County Inflarmary is located on the County Farm, about three miles southwest of San Joés. This building was built in 1875, at a cost of about twenty thousand dollars, its architects being Mesers. Leazen & Lash, who also superintended its construction. It is three stories in height, perfectly lighted and ventilated, and arranged with all the conveniences experience could suggest.

EDUCATIONAL

In addition to its excellent system of common schools, Santa Clara County is the location of various institutions of learning.

SANTA CLARA COLLEGE

SANTA CLARA COLLEGE

is situated at Senta Clara, on the site of the ancient mission. It is under
the supervision of the Fathers of the Society of Jesus. The old Mission
Church still stands there, but with a new roof and a modern front. It
was founded in 1831, by Rev. John Nobili, but was not incorporated and
empowered to confer degrees until April, 1855. No care nor expense has
been spared to make this institution descret the eaviable reputation which
it has achieved. From time to time new bulldings have been added,
until now its accommodations are of a very superior order. Its Faculty,
presided over by Father Vasai, are men each one of whom is eminent in
his special department. The average attendance of students is about two
hundred. The philosophical apparatus, the chemical laboratory, the uniseum
of natural history, the library, containing more than ten thousand
volumes, together with the infirmary and the gymnasium, are all moded
in their way. The Faculty consists of thirty special instructors, exclusive
of the President. There are two distinct courses of study, the classical
and the scientific. There is but one term in the school year, which commences in August and ends in June.

INTURESTIY OF THE PACCELC.

UNIVERSITY OF THE PACIFIC,

UNIVERSITY OF THE PACIFIC, under the auspice of the Methodist Episcopal Church, is located on what is known as the e University Tract," about midway between San Jeeé and Santa Clara. This institution was incorporated in 1861, the first graduating class being composed of Thomas H. Laine and John W. Owen, who were the first class graduated in a classical course in California. In 1870 the corner-stone of the present building was laid, the University having previously occupied somewhat cramped quarters in the town of Santa Clara. For several years a medical department was connected with the University, but this connection was discoved in 1872. In 1869 the College and Female Institute were consolidated, ladies being admitted to the University classes on an equal footing with gentlemen, and allowed to compete for the same degrees. A large and elegant building has recently been erected offer the use of the gentlemen. The College campus contains sixteen acres, improved with walks and drives, and abunding with shrubbery. Thus far thirty A.B., sixty-four B.B., and thirty-four M.D. degrees have been conferred. Rev. A. S. Gibbons, D.D., is President of the institution, and is assisted by a full and competent Faculty.

THE COLLEGE OF NOTRE DAME

was established in 1851, and the first structure was a wooden building, located on the present grounds on Santa Clara Street, between San Pedro and Santa Teres Streets. But in 1852 the institution had grown so in popularity that the increased number of papils forced them to enlarge their premises, and they have now probably the finest college for young ladies in the State. The buildings, a sketch of which appears elsewhere, are numerous and substantial, and meet every want incident to an institution of this character. The grounds contain fourtons nere, surrounded by a brick wall eight feet high, and are beautifully adorned with lawns,

flower-beds, orchards, and vineyards. The institution is presided ever by the Sisters of Notre Dame, a sisterhood which devotes all its energies and resources to the education of their sex. The course of study is complete and thorough, comprehending every item necessary to a finished aducation, both intellectually and morally.

SAN JOSÉ INSTITUTE AND BUSINESS COLLEGE

SAN JOSÉ INSTITUTE AND BUSINESS COLLEGE.

This institution was established by Freeman Gates in 1861, and is situated on First Street, between St. James and Julian Streets. It was presided over by Mr. Gates up to the time of his decease in 1872, with the exception of a haber interval, when it was under the management of Mr. George E. Houghton. After Mr. Gaies's death, the institution was conducted by Mr. James Vinsonhaler, in conjunction with Mrs. A. M. Gates, Professor Vinsonhaler taking charge of the commercial department, and bringing it up to a state of perfection seldom witnessed in schools of this character. Professor Vinsonhaler died in May, 1876. Mr. Louis Ebermayer was appointed to take charge of the commercial department. If has been a valuable help to the educational interests of Santa Clara County, and has done much good work in the cause of practical education. It is now in charge of Mr. Isaac Kinley as Superintendent.

THE STATE NORMAL SCHOOL.

THE STATE NORMAL SCHOOL.

This Institution, standing as it does at the head of the common school system of the State, is looked upon with interest and pride by all clitzens of the Pacific coast. It is located in the city of San José, on Washington Square, a tract bounded by San Fernando, Seventh, San Carlos, and Fourth Streets, and is one thousand one hundred and sixty feet in length by one thousand one hundred and sixty feet in length by one thousand und five feet in width. It was donated to the State by the city in consideration of the making San José the location of the school. The present building was commenced in 1870, Theodore Lenzen being the architect, and was not fally completed until 1876, owing to the inadequacy of legislative appropriations, but it has been occupied for several years. The building is three hundred and fourteen feet long and two hundred and twenty-nine feet deep; in height it is seventy feet to the top of the cornice, and one hundred and fifty-two feet to the top of the cornice, and one hundred and fifty-two feet to the top of the cornice, and new hundred and fifty-two feet to the top of the cornice, and new hundred and seventy-five thousand dollars. In addition to numerous commerced with it is contained a chemical laboratory, rooms and apparatus for philosophical upparatus and experiments, tramikins and models for the study of anatomy, libraries, museum of natural history, etc. It has connected with it a training school in which students obtain a practical experience in teaching and dealing with children. During the year 1876-6, the number of students was five hundred and one. The institution is under charge of a Board of Trusteer, of which the Governor of the State is Chaliman. The Principal of the school is Mr. Charles H. Allen, who is assisted by a Board of Instruction composed of eleven experienced instructors.

COMMON SCHOOLS

The common school system of California is carried out to its full perfection in Santa Clara County. The rigid examination to which the teachers are subjected insures the employment of none but the best material,—generally, only about twenty per cent, of those applying reselve the required certificate.

the required certificate.

The first common schools of the County were organized in 1853. There were two schools established, both located in San José. At that time the County did not own a school-house, nor did it possess a school lot. At present there are in Santa Clara County 68 school districts, with 83 school buildings; 105 teachers are employed, and there is an average attendance of 4892 pupils. The sum of \$90,672.99 is received from all sources as school money. The school-houses are built on the modern plan, with plenty of light, good ventilation, comfortable seats, and with a dow regard to esthetics. The average annual cost to the County of each pupil is about \$18.50. The number of children in the County of school age is 8110.

	W	HITT	1	Namo.		INDIAN.		W2.	
	Boya.	Girls.	Total.	Boyn.	Girts.	Total.	Boye.	Girlic	Total.
Number of children between the ages of 3 and 17 Children under 5. Between 5 and 17, attending public school Between 5 and 17, attending private school			3547 4874	28 1111	11.1	82 21 18 19	5 111	5	11
Mongolian children between 5 an Deaf and dumb, between 5 and 21 Blind, between 5 and 21 years of Children, native born, native pur Children, native born, one parent Children, native born, both paren	year age fore is for	ign eign	f agr					581 151 411 50	77

MANUFACTORIES.

MANUFACTORIES.

The high prices for labor which have ruled in California have hitherto had a depressing effect on manufacturing enterprises in Santa Clara County, but she is fast recovering from this incubes. The adaptability of this County to manufacturing purposes becomes manifest when her great capacity for producing raw material is considered. Already several manufacturing enterprises are successfully in operation. Principal among these are-

The San José Woolen-Mills, established in 1870. Its capacity per au-

num is 144,000 yards of eassimere, 64,000 yards of flannel, and 5000 pairs of blankets, and employs 43 hands. The Santa Clara Valley Mill and Lumber Company, the San José Mill and Lumber Company, the Bear Creek Lamber Company, all of San José, and the Enterprise Mill and Lumber Company of Santa Clara, represent the manufacture of lumber in this County. The saw-mills of these companies are located in the Red Woods, just over the summit of the Santa Cruz Mountains, while their planing-mills for the manufacture of mill-work are located in San José and in Santa Clara. During the lumber season of 1876 these mills manufactured and sold in Santa Clara County about seventeen million feet of lumber.

The manufacture of machinery and foundry work is carried on quite extensively, the principal shops being those of Joseph Enright, Donald

feet of humber.

The manufacture of machinery and foundry work is carried on quite extensively, the principal shops being those of Joseph Keright, Donald McKenzie, and Watkins & Soct. These shops manufacture all kinds of engines, agricultural implements, and cast-iron work used in business

blocks.

The Angora Robe and Glove Company was organized, in 1875, for the purpose of dyeling, tanning, and manufacturing the skin and flence of the Angora or Cashmere goat into robes, rugs, gloves, etc.

The tanning establishment of Mr. Jacob Eberhardt, in Santa Clara, is one of the most extensive institutions of the kind on this cost, being capable of turning out all classes of work, from the most delicate glove kid to the coarsest sole leasther.

The Saratoga and Lick's Puper Mills, one set of which is located at Saratoga, and the other on the Guadalupe Ritver, betwoen Santa Clara and Alviso, have been run up to their fall capacity ever since they were established, and have proved the enterprise a success. The same may be said of the Summerville Pasteboard Mill, which is also located at Saratoga.

Saratoga.

Flouring-mills of very extensive character are located in various portions of the County, and annually ship large quantities of flour to foreign parts. The most important of these are the mills of Moody & Bros., and Orange Mills, in San Jose; the Santa Cara. Valley Mills at Gilroy, and Rogers's Mills at Les Gatos, the latter being run by water-power.

The manufacture of kid gloves has also grown into quite an industry, and preparations are being made for raising, tanning, and dyeing the skins used in this business.

and preparations are being inade for raising, tanning, and dyeing the skins used in this business.

The manufacture of fruit-bexes is an industry of great importance to the County. The principal factories are the Santa Clara Valley Fruit-Package Manufactory and the San José Bex Factory.

The manufacture of tobacco and eigens is extensively carried on at Giltro by the Consolidated Tobacco Company of California.

The manufacture of raisins, prunes, and other dried fruits is extensively carried on by the Alden Fruit-Drying Company, while the San José Fruit-Packing Company annually put up about tive lundred thousand cans of fruit for shipment. Wine and brandy are extensively manufactured, the principal wine-maker being Charles Le Franc, of the Almadon Vineyard, and the principal manufactures of brandy being General Naglee, Mr. Stockton, and Mr. Lainserain.

There are numerous shope for the manufacture of wagons, carriages, furniture, agricultural implements, etc., which are rapidly growing into large manufacturing satalishments.

The amount of capital invested in manufacturing enterprises in Santa Clara County will be seen by reference to the statistical tubles.

BUILDING STONE.

BUILDING STONE.

One of the most important products of Santa Clara County is the building stone found in the quarry of Levi Goodrich, located about eight miles south of San José, and a little south of the Almaden Road. This stone is probably the most perfect in the world for building purposes. It resembles somewhat in appearance Caen stone, of which the city of Paris is built, but is of a much higher quality. It has a beautiful cream color, unchangeable by time or exposure to the worlder. By a careful analysis made at Santa Clara College it is found to consist of grains of sillen, bound by a sillecous exement, and is pronounced to be the purexis and-sone. It is perfectly fire-proof, tests having been made by heating it to red best in a furnace, and then plunging it in a bath of cold water. This test produced not the slightest effect either on its texture or color. The supply is inexhansible, and it is easily quarried of any size or shape. As yet these quarries have not been extensively worked, but as the quality of the stone becomes known the demand is becoming greater.

MINES AND MINING INTERESTS.

MINES AND MINING INTERESTS.

The new Almaden Quicksilver Mines, named from the mines of Almaden on the frontier of Estremadura, in old Spain, are situated fifteen miles south of San José, in the Santa Cruz Mountains, at an elevation of seventeen hundred feet above the sea. They were known to the Indians at an early day, who resorted to them for the purpose of obtaining the red paint contained in the cinnabar, but who know nothing about quicksilver. They used the paint to adorn their persons, and although they were severely salivated with every application, they, like the fashionable women of the period, were willing to searcing chylical comfort to personal appearance. A Spanish officer named Castillero, seeing Indians thus painted, made inquiry of them, discovered the location of the mine, and filed a claim to it. But not complying with the cenditions prescribed in such cases, he lost control of it, and, after much littigation, it passed into the hands of the Quicksilver Mining Company, by whom it is now held and worked.

These mines were first worked for quicksilver in 1845, but the opera-

held and worked.

These mines were first worked for quicksilver in 1845, but the operations were on a small scale, and no record exists earlier than 1850. They have been, and are now, the most productive quicksilver mines in the world, excepting only the mine of Almaden in Spain. They are developed to a depth of thirteen hundred feet, and the workings extend horizontally, somewhat in the shape of the letter Y.

Between five and as is hundred men find atendy employment, the work being actively prosecuted throughout the year. From the 1st of January, 1884, for the 31st of December, 1876, the number of feet of drifting and sinking on the mines of the Company, as shown by the records, amounted to 129,724 feet, or 26.24 miles, at a cost of \$1,000,000. This does not in-

clude the exervations made in extracting ore during the period named, nor any expenses for the same.

In 1875 there were used in the mines 2951 kegs of black powder (25 pounds each) and \$50 pounds of Giant and Hercules powder,—the rock in most cases requiring to be drilled and blasted. At the close of the same year about five noise of railroad, underground, were in operation, and over 2000 drills were in active use.

The reduction works consist of nine furnaces, and include the most improved methods for working quickslive orres. When the present improvements are finished, they may be considered as most complete and perfect in every respect.

ry respect...
following table shows the production of quicksilver at New Almor twenty-three years and three months, ending December, 1876:

Pol. Self to Aug 1981. Self to Self to Aug 1981. Self to Self	July 1850 to June 1851, July 1857 to June 1853, July 1857 to June 1853, July 1857 to June 1853, July 1858 to June 1853, July 1856 to June 1855, July 1856 to June 1856, July 1856 to July 1856, July 1	Darna
	9	Grasso, Pomods.
SAN'UNI'VALI SAN'	Chains by Enjametion	rmode Grants, Terra
11 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	dia.	Tierra, Pounds.
1,117,000 1,100,000	16.281,400 16.281,200 16.281	Total Pounds.
#1	an communication of the commun	Fisska frot Furnacia
F SH S. SOCHAS	1,129	Flasks fro Washing
W. W. C.	PACTOR PA	Flacks. Total.
		Average Amount po Month. Flacks.
E Estessessesses		Percentage Including a
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		Percentage Tierras.
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	True per c of oreex'l Tier. & W'n
B ESSECTIONS		No. of Months.

THE GUADALUPE QUICKSILVER MINES

are located about four miles northwest of New Almaden. They were first discovered in 1846, but soon went into the hands of a wealthy Rastern company, called the "Santa Clara Mining Association," of Battimore. The mine contains many rich lodes, but at such a depth as to render it necessary to employ extra machinery in order to keep out the

water.

"THE NORTH ALMADEN MINE" is situated about ten miles east of San José, on what is known as Silver Creek. This mine has been known for quite a number of years, but until lately has only been worked spasmodically and without capital or energy enough to develop its resources. During the present year it went into the hands of Capitain J. H. Adams, an old and experienced miner, who has organized the North Almaden Company, put up a furnace, and proposes to develop the mine to the full-est extent of its resources. At the present time the prespect is flattering for a large yield of quicksliver.

There is a prevailing impression, based upon superficial peospect, that the Santa Cruz Range contains large deposits of coal, while the Coast Range at various points contains good prospects for quicksliver, tift, copper, and other metals. But these are only the possibilities of the future.

per, and other metals. But these are only the possibilities of the future.

SANTA CLARA VALLEY AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY.

This society was organized in 1855 by Jouis Prevost, Louis Pellier, J.
B. Bantemps, B. S. Fox, and E. W. Case, under the name of the "Pioneer Horicultural Society," and held monthly meetings at the City Hall in San José, where the members compared products and held consultations. In 1864 an agricultural society was formed, and in 1857 the two societies were consolidated, and the present name adopted, the flat effects being Judge Daniels, President; Colman Younger and Joseph Aram, Vice-Presidents; J. C. Obb, Secretary; R. G. Moody, Tresaurer; I. A. Gould and L. Prevest, Directors. The first fair was held on the 18th and 19th of December; 1857, and fairs were held annually thereafter. In 1859 the society was regularly incorporated under an act of the Legislature. In 1859 the present fair grounds, located on the Alameda, were purchased from General Nagles for six thousand dollars. The purchased from General Nagles for six thousand dollars. The purchased process of the secretary six acres, and is now worth, including improvements, about one hundred thousand dollars. This society is probably in a better condition than any other similar organization on the coast. In addition to the preperty owned by it, it has enough funds on hand to continue the improvement of the park and to afford filberal premiums to exhibitors. The fairs held by the society are always numerously attended from abroad, and afford the filters exhibition of etock, fruit, etc., in the State. The following is a list of Preidents and Secretaries:

Date.	Pros	idents.			Bic	returies.
1859	Wm.	Daniel:	9	 C.	B.	Younger.
1860						46
1861	S. J. I	Iensley	V	 W	mi	Daniels.
1862×	W m.	Daniel	E	 C.	B.	Younger.
1862+	Cary	Pachies		 J.	R.	Lowe, Jr.
1863	James	F. Ke	nnedv	 		-11
1864	14					s Goorge.
1865	W. C	Wilso	D		44	41
1866		11			44	-41.
1867	44	11			160	46
1808		- 11		 Tw	lor	Beach.
1869	14	11				44
1870		44			+	48
1871,		11		 2 4	1	44
1879	44	EE.			ren	a George
1878	48	14				
1874		ic			1	44
1875		16			vue	s George
1876		Sargon				

ROADS AND HIGHWAYS.

For many years after the organization of the County the public roads were in a miscrable condition, but of late years they have rapidly im-proved, until they are now inferior to none in the State. It has cost a great deal of money to bring them to their present state of perfection, and about ninety per cent. of the floating debt of the County was incurred for this purpose. Road-building is constantly going on, and will proba-bly not be discontinued to any great extent until every point in the County is easily accessible.

NEWSPAPERS.

The first newspaper published in Santa Clara County was the State Journal, edited by James B. Devoc. Its first issue was on the 19th of December, 1850, and its last in 1851, shortly after the adjournment of

The San José Daily Argus, published in the interest of Fremont, was established January 4, 1851, but only lived through the Senatorial cam-

paign. The Sos Just Weekly Fisitor was the first permanent newspaper published in Santa Clara County. It was commenced June 20, 1851, by Emerson, Damon, and Jones. After the first six months Damon withdrew, and the publication was continued by Emerson, with A. Jones, Jr., as editor. It was Whig at first, but in October it was changed to the Democracy. Its name was changed in August, 1862, to the Sante Garage. Register, J. C. Emerson and Givens George being the publishers, and F. B. Woolcook address.

Be ention. It was Wing at Inci, but in October it was changed to Ino Democrocy. Its name was changed in August, 1820; to the Seante Carror Register, J. C. Emerson and Givens Goorge being the publishers, and F. B. Murdoch editor.

F. B. Murdoch having obtained control of the Register, Isa name was changed in 1850 to the Sea José Téclograph, and its publishers, was changed in 1850 to the Sea José Téclograph, and its publisher was changed in 1850 to the Sea José Téclograph, and its publisher was sent into the hands of W. N. Slocum, and in 1860 was merged into the Sea José Téclograph, and the publisher Goorge. In 1850 it was published by Goorge & Kendall. In 1850 these parties sold out the puper to Goorge O Dougherty, who published it until 1853, when it was purchased by F. B. Murdoch, and became the Petrict. The Technes was suppressed for about eight months in 1892 and 1863 by General Wright. It was then published by O'Dougherty. In January, 1860, W. F. Sewart began the publication of the San José Daily Reporter. It was changed to the Weekly Reporter in April of the same year. It was discontinued after a few months publication.

The San José Weekly Mercany was started in 1891 by J. J. Owen, bu having obtained control of the Telegraph, In June of that year B. H. Cattle went into the paper, which was then published by the firm of Owen & Cattle. On November 6, 1881, the Daily Mercany was started in 1893 by firm of the same petrological control of the Daily Mercany was a started in 1895 the firm consisted of Owen, Cattle & Commy. In August of that year B. H. Cattle went into the paper, which was then published by the firm of Owen & Cattle. On November 6, 1881, the Daily Mercany was a started in 1895 the firm consisted of Daily Mercany was recommenced, but was again discontinued in 1870. In this year Cattle and Commy retired, leaving Owen in such charge of the paper. In 1875 Owen & Cattle purchased the Guide, and again commenced the publication of the Daily Mercany was a sommenced the publication of the Daily Mercany a

ber 7, 1893. The streety is now pursuent by assessments.

The Staturday Advertiser began publication August 11, 1893, with C. L. Ystes as proprietor. It was discontinued February 13, 1899.

May 17, 1870, the Daily Independent was started by a company of printers. In December of that year it was purchased by Norman Porter, who in turn sold out to the Guide in 1871.

The Daily Guide was started in February, 1871, by Stockton & Hansbrough and the Independent of Porter, and merged the two papers under the name of the Guide. In January, 1872, Porter received the Guide from Stockton, and sold the same to Owen & Cattle in March, who changed the name to the Daily Mercesty.

The Daily Press, by J. J. Conmy, was published for a few weeks during the early portion of 1872.

The Reporter was published by H. A. DeLacey from April to August, The Reporter was published.

se early portion of 1872. The Reporter was published by H. A. De Lacey from April to August,

The California Agriculturist (monthly) was started by Brand & Hallo-way in May, 1871. S. H. Herring purchased Brand's interest during the same year, and in 1874 he purchased Hailoway's interest, and has pub-lished the paper ever since.

* January to April.

† From April.

The California Journal of Education was commenced June 1, 1876. G. Hamilton, proprietor.

The Leader and Advocate is published at Gilroy. J. C. Martin, publishes and proprietor.

The Santa Clava Echo: spublished at Santa Clara. C. W. Upton preprietor, and W. C. Wilson publisher.

In 1802-70 a paper called the Ecceptrise was published at Mayfield, by W. H. Clipperton. It was moved to Gilroy in 1871, and called the Giveny Telegram. It only lived until the end of the campaign of the latter year.

year.

The Temperance Champion—Alexander Murgatten, proprietor menced publication June 1, 1876.

PLACES OF INTEREST.

PLACES OF INTEREST.

Mr. James Lick, in his celebrated deed of gift, appropriated seven hundred thousand dollars for the construction and maintenance of an astronomical observatory on the Pacific coast, and selected. Mount Hamilton, in Santa Clara County, as the site theorier. One of his sixplations was that the telescope to be creeted in the observatory should be the most powerful in the world. The County is now building a first-class road to the summit of the mountain, which is about eighteen miles ent of San José. This road is of a very easy grade, and winds round the sides of the mountain, presenting to the traveler at each turn a new and magnificent landscape. From the summit there is an unbroken horizon, with the Pacific Ocean on the west and the great San Jonquin plains on the cast. Work is to be soon commenced on the observatory building, which will be completed as soon as possible. The road is already a favorite resort for tearists, and will possess superior attractions when the work Is all finished.

sort for tearists, and will possess superior attractions when the work is all finished.

The Pacivo Congress Spaines are located about nine miles north-west of Santa Clara, and a mile from Santoga, on a platean in the hills. A hotel furnishes every accommodation to visitors. Stages run regularly, and a telegraph line connects the hotel with all points in the State. The analysis of the water is, chioride of sodium, 191.159; apphase of soda, 12.140; carbonate of soda, 123.831; carbonate of iron, 14.030; carbonate of line, 17.259; silica, alumina, with trace of magnesia, 49.882.

Grikov Hor Svaines are located on the eastern slope of the Pacheco Mountains, about fifteen miles east from Gifroy, and are about twervalunded feet above the sea level. They are greatly resorted to by invalids, who find relief by bothing in the waters, which have a temperature of about 110°, and are strongly impregnated with iron, magnesia, sulphur, alum, and arrenic, the iron predominating. The springs are easy of access by stage from Gifroy.

This Cirry Park is located in Pentiencia Cañon, about seven miles east from San José, on a portion of the Pueblo lands reserved by the city as a place of resort for her people. The approach is by the Santa Clara Avenua, a beautiful stream,—the Pentiencia,—and abounds with mineral springs, both warm and cold. A magnificent hotel is to be exceted on the gounds. There are numerous summer resorts scattered through the County, while not a few of the merchant princes of San Francisco have built elegant mansions within its borders for summer occupation.

FINANCIAL CONDITION OF THE COUNTY.

The total indebtedness of the County will be seen by a reference to the studistical tables. She has real estate and improvements, including school-houses, etc., amounting to about eight hundred thousand dollars. Her bonds bring a premium in the market, and her amount of taxable property is so large that the rate of taxation is as low as any other County in the State.

W. P. R. B. bends bearing int. at 7 per cent., redeemable 1885... \$150,000.00 S. P. R. R. " " 1876... 96,000.00 Funded debt, " 8 " " 1885... 130,000.00

Outstanding	warrants or	road fund, bearing infirmary fund, current exp. fund,	11	\$50,543.61 19,974.12 167.40
T	otal of all i	ndebtedness		 \$440,685.18

SERIPTION AND VALUE OF PROPERTY OWNED IN THE C	OUNTY.
t-house and jail S	225,000.00
ty infirmary farm (110 acres)	11,000,00
ii improvements	20,000.00
Total	856,000.00

	Total	\$856,000.00
TABULAR	STATEMENT OF THE TOTALS OF THE ASSESSMENT CLARA COUNTY FOR THE YEAR 187	
Number	f acres assessed	
	real estate, other than city or town lots	
14	improvements on the same	1,607,440.00
44	city and town lots	6,145,861.00
++:	improvements on the same	
11:	" on real estate assessed to oth	er
	than owners	
Value of	personal property	
Total valu	ie of all	
1		d. 81,707,926.00
Total tax	levied	448,910,96

Cour

The Daily Evening Tribune was published during the campaign of 1872, by Clevinger & Armstrong.

During the local option campaign of 1874, the Daily Independent Culf-formion was published by Herring & Caney.

The Daily Garden City Times was started in August, 1874, by a syndicate of printers and literary gentlemen, but only lived about six weeks. The Daily and Weekly Advertisor, by B. H. Cattle, commenced publication in May, 1876, and was discontinued December 4, 1875.

The Weekly Balance-Steet, a commercial paper, was commenced February 12, 1876. H. S. Foote, publisher and proprietor.

The Culffornia Journal of Education was commenced June 1, 1876. G. Hamilton, proprietor.

THE PRESENT TIME (1876).

On the 15th day of May, 1850, the County Court issued an order directling the Justices of the Peace to meet at the County seat on the 1st day of June, 1850, and elect two of their number to act as Associate Judges of the Court of Sessions.

At that meeting Caswell Davis and H. C. Smith were chosen as Associate Justices, and the first Court of Sessions that had control of the County business was organized, as follows: J. W. Bedman, Presiding Judge; Caswell Davis and H. C. Smith, Associate Justices.

July 5, 1861, John Gilroy appointed Associate Justice vice H. C. Smith, resigned.

Smith, resigned.

August 18, 1851, an entry appears naming Charles Clayton and Caswell Davis as Associate Justices, but how Clayton's name comes in is not shown by the records.

Ceteber 6, 1851. R. B. Buckner and Marcus Williams elected Associate Justices.

nte Justices.

December, 1851. Cyrus G. Sanders appointed Associate Justice vice.

B. Buckner, resigned.

December, 1851. Cyrus G. Sandars appointed Associate Justice vice R. B. Bucker, resigned.

May 14, 1852. Peleg Rush appointed Associate Justice vice Marcus Williams, who was absent from the County.

June 4, 1852. An election for Supervisors was ordered to be held on the second Monday in June, 1852, in accordance with an act of the Legislature passed May 3, 1852.

The following names comprised the first Board of Supervisors for the County, viz.: June N. Senter, President; Fred. E. Whiting, Win. E. Taylor, Jacob Gravell.

County, Vis.: Issue N. Senter, Proc. B. Vistudig, vol. S. Taylor, Jacob Grewell.

As organized December 6, 1852: L. W. Bescenn, President; Jno. B. Allen, A. M. Church, Levi Goodrich, and Joseph C. Boyd.

Soptember 7, 1853: George Peck, President; Daniel Murphy, R. G. Moody, Wm. Daniele, W. Gellimora.

In April, 1854, the County government again went into the hands of the Court of Sessions, with R. B. Buckner County Judge, Caswell Davis and Thomas L. Vermuels Associate Justices.

At the meeting held June, 1854, F. B. Murdoch served as Associate Justices wire Thomas L. Vermuele. July 25, Semuel Rutherford took the place of Murdoch as Associate Justice. August 7, 1858, Murdoch again appears a Associate Justice.

October 1, 1854. R. B. Buckner County Judge, Caswell Davis and C. G. Thomas Associate Justice.

October 1, 1864. R. B. Buckner County Judge, Caswell Davis and C. G. Thomas Associates.
October 25, Marcus Williams and J. P. Martin were Associates.
By act of the Legislature, March 10, 1855, a Board of Supportions was re-established, and at an election held April 9, 1855, the following persons were elected: Sumsol Henderson, President; Wm. B. Bassham.
Daniel Murphy receives a majority of votes in District No. 5, but his name does not appear in any of the proceedings of the Board.
November, 6, 1856. Wm. B. Bassham, President; Wm. R. Bane, Samuel Morrison.
1856-7. Carp Peobles, President; China Smith, D. R. Douglass.
1857-8. Jesuph H. Kincald, President A. Ballard, Albert Worthen.

1896-7. Car's recolors pressed on the president and the second of the control of the president and the presiden

CHURCH STATISTICS.

Statement of the Value of Church Property in Santa Clara County, as shown by the Assessment Roll of 1875-6.

Los Gasos	\$490,00	
Santa Clara Township	800.00	
Santa Clara	580,00	
Santa Clara	6.800.70	
	10,500.00	
San José		
Mayfield	1,800.00	
Gilroy	2,760.00	-
Total.		823,140.00
University of the Pacific		17,400,00
Total		\$40,540.00
		1.0

M. E. CHURCH SOUTH.

rood Township	\$270,00
José	1,000.00
Clara	650.00
ont Township	1,075.00
y	2,400,60-
Total	

San José...... Mayfield.......... Mountain View. Milpitas.
Cemetery near Kell's.
Total......
College of Notre Dam
Santa Clara College ... Total. \$201,510.00 PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH Santa Clara Township San José Santa Clara ilroy Ilpitae Total ... \$16,650.00 BAPTIST CHURCH \$6,100.00 1,200.00 \$7,300.00 n José nta Clara..... Total \$1,100.00 1,060.00 \$2,160.00 Santa Clara.... Gilrov Total MISCELLANGOUS.

CATHOLIC CHURCH

POST-OFFICES IN SANTA CLARA COUNTY.

Grand total ..

\$20,410.00

Alma, Alviso, Bell's Station, Burnett, Evergreen, Gilroy, Gilroy Het Springs, Les Gatos, Mayfield, Mountain View, New Almaden, Patchin, Pioneer, San Felipe, San José, Santa Clara, San Ysidro, Saratoga, Sar gent, Sherman, Tennant.

THE CITY OF SAN JOSÉ

THE CITY OF SAN JOSÉ.

The history of Sant Clara County and that of the city of San José are so blended that we have carried both along tegether up to 1858. We have seen that the original survey of the Pueblo contained four square leguess of land, but this was afterwards strethed until the final confirmation of the Pueblo lands to the city gave a truct eleven and a half lengues leng and two leagues and eight hundred seres wide. This hand has been sold by the city to actual settlers, and the proceeds have gone into the school funds of the city. The original limits of the city have been extended from time to time until they have reached their present dimensions, and the buts and tents of 1846 have given way to solid brick basiness blocks and unguilidered manalon-houses.

tended from time to time until they have reached their present dimensions, and the buts and tents of 1846 have given way to solid briefs business blocks and magnificent mansion-houses.

At that time the principal hotels were the Mansion House, situated about where Music Hall now stands, the French Hotel, on Market Street, and Price's Hotel, at the corner of First and San Fernando Streets. On the 11th of April, 1863, J. D. Happe, Martin Murphy, Chas. White, and saveral other of the most prominent citizents of San Joséwers killed by the explesion of the holler of the steamer "deuny Lind." They had taken passage at Alvise for San Francisco, and when about opposite the Pulgas Ranche the disaster occurred. The event cast a deep gloom over the whole community.

The election in the fall of this year showed sight hundred and fifty three voles cant in the entire township. About one hundred houses were built this year, among which were the Maripons store building, on Market Street, the brick dwelling, beause near the corner of Santa Clara Street and Pacheco Alley. The City Hall building was completed in April, 1896. It was built under the Impression that San José would soon again be the capital of the State, and it was constructed with a view to its possible use as a state-house. Levi Geodrich was the architect.

In 1868, the number of children within the city limits between the ages of four and eighteen years was 275 bays and 206 girls; there were 245 children ander four years of age.

In March, 1869, a memorable affray occurred at the corner of Second and San Pernando Streets, in which Sanuel J. Creaby and L. Pesey Ferguson were killed; the latter's death was caused by a random bell that came straggling into the court-house. During this year, Horace Greely and Bayard Tayler lectured in San José. The first thetter building in the city was created in 1839, by James Stark. It was located on First Street, between Sant Clara and St. John. It was opened with 'ilkeheling,' on the evening of the 10th of October. Murphy's Block

In 1801, the city having seoured railroad communication with San Francisco, business took a new start, and the work of improving the city was pushed with vigor. In 1808 the Ausersia House was built, Theodoro Lennen being the architect. The city's debt at the heginning of this year was twenty-fave thousand dolars. The Hensely Block was built in 1804. In 1806 the Knox Block was completed, as was also the Byland Block, at the corner of First and San Fernando Streets. During this year the entire indebtedness of the city was liquidated. From 1801 to 1809 the increase of population was greater than during the preceding fifteen years.

The block at the southwest corner of Santa Clara and First Streets was erected by M. Levy, in 1867; the building at the sorthesst corner of Santa Clara and Market Streets was built in 1890. The Bank of San Jose building and the Commercial Bank building were erected in 1872. The Central Market was built in 1871 and the City Market in 1872. The first asphaltom payement was that on the north side of Santa Clara Street, and was laid in 1870. The San Jose Opera-House was opened August 18, 1870, with the play of "Lendon Asaurance."

The clift directory, published in 1876, gives the names of five thousand In 1861, the city having secured railroad communication with Sar

eight hundred and seventy-four adult actual residents in San José. This indicates a present population of about seventeen thousand.

STREETS

STREKTS.

San José has about one hundred and twenty miles of streets. The general width is eighty feet, with fifteen-feet sidewalks. Fifth Street is one hundred feet wide. Hitherto they have been constructed on an established grade, with curbs and gutter plants, and covered with gravel to a depth of ten inches in the centre and five inches at the curb. The average cost of street improvement is one dollar and fifty cents per lineal foet.

CEMETERIES

The first burying ground was laid out in 1847, near the corner of Eleventh and William Streets But few persons were interred there, the cemetery having been removed in 1849 to Oak Hill, its present location, about three miles south of the city, on the Monterey road. It now comprises a tract of about fifty acres. It is well laid out and is kept in good

STREET RAILROADS

STREET RALLROADS.

The San José and Santa Clars. Horse Railroad was incorporated in 1868, and the road was built that year; in 1869 it was extended eastwardly to the Coyote Creek. The original officers were: S. A. Bishop, President; J. H. Moore, Teasurer, and Chas. Silent, Secretary. The first street horse railroad was built in 1872, the incorporators being S. A. Bishop, P. O. Minor, and A. L. Ribota. The North Side Horse Railroad, connecting the intersection of First and St. John Streets with the northeastern city limits, was built in 1875. Davis Divine was the first President. Two other street railroads was projected, one running south to the cometery, and one south into the section of country known as the Willows.

BANKS

San José has four incorporated banking institutions, as follows:
The Bank of San José, established March 12, 1866; incorporated January 31, 1868. Original enpital, \$100,000; capital increased March 20, 1869, to \$250,000; surplus Jan. 12, 1876, \$81,840.07. Total capital and surplus, \$33,840.07. Value of real estate and improvements, \$120,000. Presidents, John G. Bray to February 14, 1871; Adolph Plister to August 4, 1871; T. Rilard Beans from August 4, 1871, to versent time.

present time.

San José Savinga Bank, incorporated Jan. 15, 1868; capital stock
\$100,000, increased to \$600,000 July 1, 1876. Value of real estate an improvements owned by the bank, \$54,000. Presidents since organiza tion, James O. Cobb, now decessed, and John H. Moore, present incum

bent. Commercial and Savings Bank, incorporated May 8, 1874. Amount of capital stock, \$1,000,000; President, C. T. Ryland. Farmers' National Gold Bank; incorporated July 11, 1874. Authorized capital, \$10,000; paid up capital, \$50,000; value of real estate and improvements, \$90,000; President, J. W. Heinds.

SAN JOSÉ LIBRARY ASSOCIATION

SAN JOSÉ LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

Incorporated July 11, 1872; Library open to the public, Sept. 19, 1872.

This institution is supported by dues from members. It occupies two rooms in Knox's Block, one of which is sixty by twenty feet, the other forty by fifteen feat. The membership is as follows:

Annual members, 180; monthly, 180; life members, 21; honorary members, 12. Number of volumes in the Library, 4200; number of volumes circulated per annum, 14,000. Since the organization of the Library, the Mayors of the city have donated their salary toward its support, this precedent having been entablished by Mr. Adolph Plater.

Mr. Plater also donated one thousand dollars in addition to his salary, which was set spart as the nucleus of a building fund. This fund amounts now to fourteen hundred and sixty-four dollars.

Mr. Plater was the first President of the Association, and has held that position ever since. George W. Pentress has been Librarian since the organization of the society.

The San José Law Library was organized in 1873, and is supported by subscriptions and by a tax of one dollar on each litigant who files a com-plaint in either the District or County Court.

PUBLIC SCHOOLS.

PUBLIC SCHOOLS.

We have given an account of the first public schools established in San Joss. They were then two in number, occupied rented rooms, and employed two teachers. Now, there are nine schools, employing thirty-seven teachers, and occupying magnificent buildings build expressly for their use, and owned by the city.

The teachers receive salaries ranging from seventy to one hundred and fifty dollars per month. The school ceases shows that in 1876 the number of school children between the ages of five and seventees years was 2890, of which 88 were colored and 4 Indian. The average attendance during the year was about 1400. The revenue of the calcol department during the year was \$80,147, and the expense, exclusive of amount spent for building, was \$39,325. The principal school buildings are—

are—
The Santa Clara Street school-house, built in 1867, at a cost of twenty
thousand dollars. Levi Goodrich architect, and Thomas Cook builder.
Reed Street school-house, built in 1870, at a cost of fifteen thousand
eight hundred and sixty-eight dollars. Victor Hoffman architect, L.
Therkelson contractor.

Therkelson contractor.

Fourth Ward school-house, built in 1874, at a cost of seventeen thousand dollars. Levi Goodrich architect, C. W. Cook contractor.

First Ward school-house, built in 1874, at a cost of seventeen thousand dollars. Levi Goodrich architect, and E. A. Vandalen contractor.

All of these buildings are magnificent structures,—large, commodious, and convenient. Views of sech of them will be found in another part of the Atlas. In addition to these buildings there are five smaller ones, located in different parts of the clay, for the accommodation of pupils in the primary grades.

ART ASSOCIATION.

The San José Art Association was organized in the early part of 1875 by a number of local artists, since which time meetings have been held each fortnight. The society numbers eighty members. The first public exhibition was held by this society in the latter part of May, 1875. The ultimate object of the society is the stablishment of an art school in San Lee.

CHURCHES.

CHURCHES.

The following denominations have congregations in San José: Baptists, Christians, Congregationalists, Cumberland Presbyterians, Methodist Spiscopal, German Methodists, Methodist Episcopal Church Soutis, Methodist Spiscopal Church Soutis, Methodist Spiscopal Church Soutis, Methodist Spiscopal Church Soutis, Methodist Spiscopal Church Soutis, Perisbyterians, Unitarians, Seventh-Day Adventists, Friends, and the Hebrew Congregation of Bicker Cholin. All of these have house of worship with the exception of the Christians, Seventh-Day Adventists, United Prebyterians, and Unitarians, who hold their meetings in different halls in the city. The St. Joseph's Catholic Church was burned in the spring of 1875, and a magnificent mee brick edifice is now being erected, at a cost of one hundred thousand dollars. A view of this building, taken from the accepted plan, can be seen in another portion of the Atlas.

SOCIETIES

SOCIETIES.

The following societies are represented in San José:
Masonic.—San José Lodge, No. 19; S. W. Boring, W. M. Priendship
Lodge, No. 210; H. N. Andrews, W. M. Electa Chapter, Order of the
Eastern Star, No. 15; H. H. Cook, W. P. Howard Chapter, No. 14; R.
A. M.; M. K. Wilcox, M. K. H. P. San José Commandery, No. 10,
Knights Templar; S. W. Boring, E. C.
I. O. O. F.—San José Encampunent, No. 35; C. L. W. Sikes, C. P.
San José Lodge, No. 34; W. C. Wilson, N. G. Garden City Lodge,
No. 142; H. T. Weich, N. G. Stella Rebekah Degree Lodge, No. 22; D.
J. Potter, N. G. Allemania Lodge, J. Saccellin, N. G.
Franco-Italian Lodge, J. Saccellin, N. G.
G. J. A. O. D.—San José Grove, No. 23; A. H. Schnoder, J. P. A. Unity
Grove, No. 27; J. Wonderlich, J. P. A.
I. O. R. M.—San José Stamm, No. 77; John Philipps, Overchief.
I. O. Brats Brith.—Ariel Lodge, No. 248; M. Biumenthall, President.
A. O. H.—San José Staion, No. 11; John Johnson, President.
Janisseries of Light; J. B. Cox, B. of C.
Patrons of Husbandry.—San José Encampement, No. 12; George
Fetherstone, Commander. California Encampument, No. 12; George
Fetherstone, Commander.

Commander.

I. O. G. T.—District Ledge; D. E. Bushnell, D. D. G.
Granger Lodge, No. 295; W. S. Boyles, W. C. T.
San José Board of Trade; G. B. McKee, President.
St. Joseph's Benevolent Society; James Hagan, President.
Austrian Benevolent Society; F. Pozzo, President.
Gormania Verlou; B. Page, President.
Gormania Verlou; B. Page, President.
Handel and Hayda Musical Society; Elliott Reed, President.
Philharmonic Musical Society; A. N. Hamm, President.
Addephi Social Club; D. Delmas, President.
Lectionnian Literary Society; H. C. Gesford, President.
San José Zouaves; F. Pillot, Captain.

SEWERAGE

SEWERAGE.

In 1870 the City Surveyer, by order of the Common Council, perfected a system of sawcrage for the city of San José. The plan consisted of a main sewer, to extend along Seventh Street through the northern city limits, and thence to the Goadalupe Kiere, with branch newer sconnecting at each of the cross streets. The plan was elaborate in its details, and net with the general approval of the Council; but as yet the city has made no provision for its construction.

The estimated price of the main sewer, constructed of brick, is about one hundred thousand dollars. The fall from the intersection of San Fernando Street to the point of debouchement at the Gradalupe is something over fifty feet, and would admit of the main sewer being placed at a depth of from fifteen to twenty fost, and by the aid of brunch sewers would give perfect drainage for the whole city for all time to come.

GAS.

GAS.

The San José Gas Company was incorporated 1869, and finished their works and turned the first gas into their mains in January, 1881. The consumption for the first year was 65,000 feet. For the year 1870 the consumption was about 5,000,000 feet. The works of the company are situated on Third Street, between Santa Clara and San Fernando Streets.

The original charter expired in 1875, when it was extended one year. The price of gas at first was ton dollars per thousand feet, and now it is five dollars.

WATER.

WATER.

In addition to the artesian wells, the city is supplied by the San José Water Company. This company was incorporated in 1868, with a capital of one hundred thousand dollars, by Denald McKenzie and John Bonner, of San José, and A. Chabot, of Caldand; their franchier running for twenty-dwe years. Their first works were located at the southeast corner of Market and San Antonia Streets, where water was pumped from artesian wells into tanks, and thonce distributed throughout the city. In 1868 the company obtained the franchies for the use of the water of the Los Gatos Creeks. The company was recognized, and the capital increased to three hundred thousand dollars. The stream was tapped at a point in the mountains about two miles above Los Gatos, and thence conducted by dumes and pipes to the reservoirs, and thence by main to San José. The works have a capacity of about fifteen million gallons, and supply both San José and Santa Clara with water, having about forty-five miles of mains and pipes in San José alone.

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

The Fire Department of San José was organized in 1857, although several companies were in existence previous to that time; the oldest being the Hook-and-Ladder Company, organized in 1854. Empire Engine Company, No. 7, was organized in the same year.

Torrent Engine Company, No. 2, was organized in May, 1867; Frank-lin Engine Company in 1871; Eureka Company in 1876. Washington Hose Company was organized in 1870, and disbanded in 1874. The other companies constitute the present Department J. C. Gerdes is Chief Engineer. The Department has two steam fire-engines, once a Silsby and one a Chapp & Jones. It has also two hand-engines and an improved ladder-truck, with all the appurtenances. Each company has a house of its own, all owned by the city. The effectiveness of the Department is demonstrated by the fact that no general confiagration has occurred since its organization. its organization

PLACES OF INTEREST

PLACES OF INTEREST.

Sau José possesse to many beaudiful buildings and grounds to make detailed mention possible in a work of this character. There are several, however, so prominent that they cannot be passed by in silenes. Among these we note the elegant grounds now owned by Mrs. Sannoil J. Hensley, on First Street. These grounds were laid out in 1836, by Mr. James R. Lows, Jr., an eminent English landcape gardener, who was employed far that purpose by Major Hensley. The premises contain about twenty-five acres, and are brought to the highest state of improvement that money can command or skill suggest. The trees, shrubbery, and plants have been gathered from all parts of the world, and show the pessibilities of our climate in the way of vegetation. The apple-tree, the magnolis, the fuelship, the properties of the fuelship, the properties of the fuelship, and the fuelship, and the fuelship, the properties of the fuelship, and the fuelship of the fuelship of

the visitor.

Live-Oak Park, located in the southeastern portion of the city, is a beautiful grove, and much used as a place of public resort.

St. James' Stuare, lying between First and Third Streets, and Market Plaza, both public squares, are beautifully laid out and ornamented, and furnish a pleasant resort for the people.

San José for several years, by the beauty of its location, the mildness of its climate, its case of access, and its superior educational advantages, has attracted to it a large number of wealthy men from all portions of the country. These persons have built patatal dwellings and adorned their grounds, so that they have become the rule throughout the city.

EAST SAN JOSÉ

is one of the suburbs of San José, adjoining the city on the east. It was laid out in 1868 on the homestead plan. It now contains about two hundred and fifty inhabitants, and is provided with an excellent school.

r Statement of the Totals of Assessment Rolls of the City of San José; also, the Amount of Taw levied for the Years 1874-5.

Value of land	\$5,947,228,00
ii improvements on land	2.019,790.00
" assessed to others than owners	15,180.00
" personal property	8,147,519.00
Amount of money	811,984.00
Total valuation of all property	10,991,651.00
" after equalization	10,991,651.00
Tax levied	82,437.39

PUEBLO LANDS OF SAN JOSÉ.

Field-Notes of the Exterior Boundaries of the Pachla Lands of Son José, situated in the County of Santa Clara, and finally confirmed to the Chy of San José. Surveyed under Instructions from L. Opson, United States Surveyor-General, by G. H. Thompson, Deputy-Surveyor. Survey com-menced July 9, 1866.

menced July 9, 1866.
Commencing at a point on the Guadalupe River as near as could be accertained where the last live-oak on said river was in March, 1838, and which is the same point described in the decree as the termination of the northwest boundary line of the Fueblo Lands. (All traces of said tree are now gone, but the point established is well known to be about the point where it formerly stood). At which point is set a realwood post, marked v P. S. J. I. Thence from "P. S. J. I" in the direction of a live-oak tree in the mountains, which is plainty seen from this point, N. 61½, E. 554 chains (variation 16° E.), to a live-oak about 20 inches in 61½°, E. 564 chains (variation 16° E.), to a live-oak about 20 inches in diameter, standing on the summit of a rocky chemical point on the west side of the summit of the ridge. (This tree was pointed out as the tree described in the decree as the point of beginning, or N. E. corner of said Pueblo Lands.) Said tree is also the N. K. corner of the Rancho Loe Tularcitos, as finally surveyed, S. 42° 20°, E. 176.00 chains, along the top of the ridge to a post in a stone mound, marked "T. No. 3," corner No. 3 of the Rancho Loe Tularcitos, as finally surveyed, S. 42° 20°, E. 176.00 chains, along the top of the ridge to a post in a stone mound, marked "D. No. 3," corner No. 3 of the Rancho Enderth Carbon Corner of the Rancho Loe Tularcitos, and continuing along top of ridge S. 52°, E. 400.05 chains, intersecting the line of the Rancho Cañada de Pala, 4600 chains, 5, 61½ W., from corner No. 3 of said Rancho, at which point of intersection is a post marked "P. S. J. 4;" thence through the Rancho Cañada de Pala, 38° E. 494.71 chains to corner No. 7 of the Rancho Cañada de Pala, and corner of Sections 19, 20, 20, and 30 in Township 7 S., Range 8 E., a post being fixed in mound of stone, marked "P. S. J. 5." Thence along the hills called San Felipe, leaving the Rancho Cañada de Pala, S. 24½°, E. 1134,40 chains, to a monument of stone about its feet high, and about eight feet at the base, on the summit of a rocky hill inside and near the northern boundary of the Rancho San Francisco de Las Liagas. (This monument was pointed out as the S. E. corner of the Pueblo Lands of San José, and answers to the description of the same given in the original survey and report of the Commissioners, of March, 1838.) Thence through the Bancho San Francisco de Las Liagas, S. 70½°, W. 554.00 chains, to a poet on a steep hillside, on the north side, and about five chains from the bead of branch of the Las Liagas, marked "P. S. J. 2;" thence over rough, brushy mountain, through the Rancho Las Ursan, N. Se? 24′, W. 1074.24 chains, to a large live-oak-tree called "El Encino," near the summit of a high spur of the Sierras, which was pointed out and described as more the original boundaries of the Pueblo Lands of San Jusé; said tree is seven feet in diameter, and is a very prominent landmark, marked "P. S. J. 11," and running thence, descending the steep side of the Sierras, N. 10½°, W. 333.75 chains, to a poet nound of stone, marked "P. S. J. 14," on the summit of a small isolated bill in the valley. (This hill was pointed out as being the hill described in the decree, and in the Cornamissioners' resport of 1838, and was at this time established as one of the beundaries of the Pueblo Lands of San José.) Thence N. 15½°, E. 347.47 chains, to a large monument of stone in a willow swamp, at the source of the Guadalupe River; she is at in said monument of stone, marked "P. S. J. 5," the bank of the Ganadalupe River; thence general course northwesterly, with the mandares of the Ganadalupe River; thence general course northwesterly, with the mandares of the Ganadalupe River; thence general course northwesterly, with the mandares of the Ganadalupe River; thence general course northwesterly, with bank of the Gaadalupe River; thence general course northwesterly, with the meanders of the Gaadalupe River, to the point of beginning. The total number of square miles within the lands confirmed to the Pushlo is one hundred and one and seventy-six one-hundredths.

The total number of square niles within the lands continued to the Pubble is one hundred and one and averanty-six one-hundredths.

THE TOWN OF SANTA CLARA is located three miles northwest of San Jess, and contains about three thousand inhabitants. It takes its name from the old mission, which was the first settlement in the County, and the nucleus of the present town. Santa Clara has had a sort of town government from 1852, but it was one particular force until 1852, when a charter was obtained which defined the limits of the town, provided for schools, and defined the duties of officers. This charter was smended in 1860, and in 1872 the present incorporation was consummated. The town as it is at present laid out is two miles long and a mile and a half wide. It takes its principal importance from the fact that it is the location of the Santa Clara College. It contains many beautiful residences, manung which are those of Mr. Arguello and Mr. Pierce. Its schools are well conducted, and have ample accommedations. Its principal intelligence is the school of the Santa Clara County is located here. It was incorporated in 1878, with a capital of three hundred thousand dollars. James P. Flerce in Presidents.

The Pire Department consists of three companies, which are provided with a hand-engine, a hock-and-ladder apparatus, and a "Babcock Extinguisher," respectively.

The different societies are represented as follows:

1. O. G. F.—Santa Clara Lodge, No. 62; W. N. Squires, N. G. True Fellowship, Lodge, No. 238; R. V. Thorn, N. G. Santa Clara Encampment, No. 82; Fred. Kington, C. P.

Masovic.—Santa Clara Lodge, No. 34; W. M. B. Kingsbury, W. M. Patrons of Husbardy.—Santa Clara Grange, No. 71; J. A. Wilcox, Master.

The Roman Catholies, Centenary Methodists, Episcopaliaus, Baptists,

Master.

The Roman Catholics, Centenary Methodists, Episcopalians, Baptists, Westminster Presbyterians, Second Adventists, and Christians all have congregations in Santa Clara.

The Santa Clara school building is a handsome structure, fifty-four by seventy-six feet, two stories in height, and was erected in 1870, at a cost of twelve thousand two hundred dollars. The number of children of theolog age is about seven hundred.

St. Mary's Academy is a school for girls, and is under the control of the Sisters of Notre Dame. The course of education embraces the ordinary Knglish bratches.

Quite a number of persons make their homes in Santa Clara whose business is almost exclusively in San José.

GILROY

is located about thirty miles south of San José, on the line of the Southern Pacific Railrond, and contains about two thousand population. It is the centre of a very extensive and rich agricultural country, and contains the factories of the Comoldiades Tobacco Company, whose fields are located in the San Pelipe Valley. The surrounding country is devoted largely to dairying, a business which has assumed large proportions in this section of the country. Gilroy furnishes good school facilities. In addition to the excellent public schools there are several private senionaries. Most prominent among these is the Convent of the Immendate Heart of Mary, established in 1871. This is an academy for young haltes. The principal building is seventy-two by thirty feet, two stories high, and is

the English branches are taught, besides the Spanish and French ianguages.

The city is supplied with water by the Gilroy Water Company, from an immense reservoir three miles from the city, to which point it is conducted from the Uvaa Creek, about seven miles from the city.

Gilroy has one newspaper, the Wockly Idencets and Leader, published every Friday, by J. C. Martin, and the Control of th

incumbent is J. C. Zack.
The societies are Keith Lodge, No. 187, F. and A. M., and Gilroy
Lodge, No. 154, I. O. O. F.
The Catholic, Presbyterian, Episcopal, Methodist, Methodist South,
and Christian congregations all have church edifies of their own. nd Christian congregations a The city is lighted with gas

LOS GATOS

LOS GATOS.

The town of Les Gates was laid out in 1850 by J. A. Forbes, who completed the flour-mill in 1854. This mill, which is the principal feature of the tows, is a massive stone structure, flig by seventy feet, and four stories in height; it is of our grantie, and cost over-one hundred thousand dollars. The enterprise failed in Forber's hands, and passed into the hands of V. Marxion & Co., a French firm, who also failed. It was then rented by Plates & Co. and others for a term of years, who found it unprofitable owing to the lack of power for so large a mill through the dry season. Unit a 1860 the nover was two turns; best iron overshot wheels. profitable owing to the lack of power for so large a mill through the dry season. Up to 1860 the power was two twenty-feet iron overshot wheels. In that year W. H. Rogers & Co. purchased the property, and raised the head to sixty feet, substituting turbine wheels for overshot. In 1870 the head was raised to two hundred feet, when the power was found ample for all purposes. At that time the firm was incorporated under the name of the "Los Gates Manufacturing Company," and a two-set woolen-mill was built; but it was destroyed by fire in June, 1874. The town is located about the miller from San José, on the Santa Cruz road. It has a population of about five hundred.

LEXINGTON

is situated about two miles above Los Gatos, and is the regular stopping-place for the San José and Santa Cruz stages.

SARATOGA

SARATOGA
contains about two hundred inhabitants, and is located about three miles
north of Los Gutos and ten miles from San José. It is the location of
one branch of the Saratopa and Lick's Mills Paper Mills and of Summerville's Pasteboard Mills.

is located about eight miles north of San José, and has a population of about three hundred.

At one time it represents the same of the sa

about three hundred.

At one time it promised to become a very flourishing town, but when the railroad was built it missed the town by shout a mile, and the result was that another town sprang up at the railroad station. It is surrounded by a fine agricultural country, and is within two miles of Bay View Landing. It contains two hotels, a good school, churches, a public hall, and other buildings. To distinguish it from the town at the station, it is called Old Mountain View.

MAYFIELD

was laid out by William Peal, in 1867. It is a very handsome place, and is the centre of one of the richest portions of Santa Clara Valley. It contains two hotels, several dry goods and other stores, grain warehouses, etc. It has an excellent graded school and fine school buildings, several churches, and a fine hail. A public road was opened in 1874 to Scale's embardedreo, on the bay, which gives excellent facilities for transportation of produce by water, in addition to the accommodations offered by the relived.

by the railroad.

The "Ayrshire Parm," a view of which may be seen in this work, is situated one-half mile southwest from Mayfield. It comprises twelve hundred and forty-two acres of fine arable land, and is almost exclusively devoted to dairying and vinleulture. Mr. Peter Coutts, the proprietor, has already spent an enormous sum of money in stocking and improving it, and his plans that are now being carried out will require much more. His head of "Ayrshires" and "Holatein" extit is the fines in the State, many of them coming directly from the best herds in Europe. The most excupulous neatness and order prevails throughout his extensive dairy and wine insansfactory. The want of space forbids us giving a more extended description of those premises.

ALVISO

is situated at the head of San Francisco Bay, about seven mites north of San José, and was at one time one of the most important towns in this section of the State,—it being the shipping-point for all this section of

calculated to accommodate thirty bearders and fifty day scholars. All the English branches are taught, besides the Spanish and French tanguages.

The city is supplied with water by the Gilroy Water Company, from an immense reservoir three miles from the city, to which point it is conducted from the Uvax Creek, about zeven miles from the city, to which point it is conducted from the Uvax Creek, about zeven miles from the city, to which point it is concept from the English of the English of the Creek and English and San Francisco, carrying passengers, but mainly run for the transportance overy Friday, by J. C. Martine.

The Fire Department consists of a force of about one hundred and fifty mone, countrising a hand-englise, a book-and-ladder, and a bose company.

is situated about seven miles northeast of San José, on the Western Pacific Railroad. It has about three hundred inhabitants, a good school, two churches, a hotel, and several stores, and an extensive blacksmith and carriage shop.

SANTA CLARA COUNTY STATISTICS.

The following tables, from the Sun José Daity Mercury, July 9, 1876, represent the products of the County, as compiled from the books of the Assessor, for the year 1875:

AGRICULTURAL.	
Land, inclosed in 1875, acres	518,850
Land cultivated in 1875, acres	216,284
Wheat acres	170,848
Wheat bushels	1,587,632
Barley, ueres	12,681 194,895
Bartey, bushels	788
Barley, bushels Oats, acres. Oats, bushels.	12.661
Rye nores	172
Rve, bushels	3,127
Oats, bushols. Rye, acres Bye, bushels. Corn, acres	123
	5,780
Peas, acres. Peas, hushels	194
Beans, acres	6
Regns, bushels	70
Potatoes, acres	298
	6,580
Sweet potatoes, acres	10
Pointoes, tons. Sweet pointoes, acres. Sweet pointoes, tons. Onions, acres. Onions, bushels.	64 53
Oniona bushela	5,962
	97 696
Have tone	43,789
Fig. screa	43,789 1,277 57,000
Flax, pounds	57,000 260
Hops, pounds	879,280
Tobacco, acres	498
Tobacco, pounds.	750,000
Butter, pounds	92,291 520,879
Change pounds	520,879
Wool, poinds. Heney, pounds.	96,000 1,492
Honey, pounds	1,002
FRUIT.	
	\$291,920
Value of fruit crop	1,142
Bearing orange-trees	8,293
Bearing olive-trees	2,012
Acres of grape-vines.	2.034
Value of Truit crops Bearing lomon-troes Bearing orange trees Bearing olive-trees Acres of grape-vines. Wine gallons.	2.034
Bearing olive-trees. Acres of grape vines. Wine, gallons. Brandy, gallons.	2,012 2,084 182,982 45,500
Wine, gallons. Brandy, gallons.	2.034
Brandy, gallons	2,084 182,982 45,500
Wine, gallons Brandy, gallons LIVE-STOCK.	2.034
Wite, galiots. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules Total number horned estile.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,018
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle Sheen.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,013 84,981
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle Sheen.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,018 34,981 318
Wite, galiots. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules Total number horned estile.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,013 84,981
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cuttle. Cashmere and Angora goats. Hogs	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,018 34,981 318
Wife, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle. Sheep. Cadmare and Angora goats. LIMPROVEMENTS.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 904 84,013 34,081 318 8,647
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Chailmers and Angora goals. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,018 34,981 31,881 8,647
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle. Sheep. Cudmere and Angora goats. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 904 84,013 34,081 318 8,647
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned estile. Scheep. Chelmare and Angera goals. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Scan-power. Water-power.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,018 34,981 31,981 5 4 4 73,654
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned castle. Sheep. Cushmere and Angora goats. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power. Water-power. Barrels of four media	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 994 84,013 84,981 8,647 5 4 1 1 73,654 8,801
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned castle. Sheep. Cushmere and Angora goats. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power. Water-power. Barrels of four media	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,018 34,981 318 8,647 5 4 1 1 73,654 8,801
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned castle Sheep. Cushmere and Angora goats. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Soam-power Water-power Water-power Barrels of flour unde. Barrels of corn ground. Sow-Mills.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 994 84,013 84,981 8,647 5 4 1 1 73,654 8,801
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned castle Sheep. Cushmere and Angora goats. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Soam-power Water-power Water-power Barrels of flour unde. Barrels of corn ground. Sow-Mills.	2,084 182,932 45,500 10,850 964 84,018 318 318 8,647 5 4 1 73,654 8,801 3 2 2
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned castle Sheep. Cushmere and Angora goats. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Soam-power Water-power Water-power Barrels of flour unde. Barrels of corn ground. Sow-Mills.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,018 34,981 318 8,647 5 4 1 1 73,654 8,801
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle Sheep. Cashmere and Angora goats. Hogs IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Barrels of four made. Bankels of corn ground. Saw-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Water-power Sheep steam-power Water-power Sheep steam-power Water-power Shingles made.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,013 84,081 34,881 173,654 4 173,654 8,801 8,801 18,197,280
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Claimere and Angora goals. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Barels of flour made. Bushles of corn ground. Sow Mills. Steam-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,013 84,081 34,881 173,654 4 173,654 8,801 8,801 18,197,280
Wife, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle Sheep. Total number horned Sheep horner Total number horned Sheep horner Total number horned Bushels of corn ground. Sheem power Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS.	2,094 182,982 45,500 10,850 904 84,013 34,981 318 8,647 7,3,654 1,73,654 1,287,000 7
Wife, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle Sheep. Total number horned Sheep horner Total number horned Sheep horner Total number horned Bushels of corn ground. Sheem power Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,013 84,081 34,881 173,654 4 173,654 8,801 8,801 18,197,280
Wife, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle Sheep. Total number horned Sheep horner Total number horned Sheep horner Total number horned Bushels of corn ground. Sheem power Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS.	2,094 182,992 45,500 964 34,081 34,081 31,88 44 1,73,654 3,801 1,297,000 1,297,000
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Claimere and Angora goals. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Barels of flour made. Bushels of cora ground. Saw-Mills. Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS. Breweries. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Pounds of wool used.	2,094 182,982 45,500 10,850 904 84,013 34,981 318 8,647 7,3,654 1,73,654 1,287,000 7
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Claimere and Angora goals. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Barels of flour made. Bushels of cora ground. Saw-Mills. Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS. Breweries. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Pounds of wool used.	2,094 182,982 45,500 10,850 994 84,013 384,081 3188 8,647 5 4 4 7 7,8,54 8,891 1,287,000 7 3,500,000 7 3,500,000 7
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Claimere and Angora goals. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Barels of flour made. Bushels of cora ground. Saw-Mills. Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS. Breweries. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Pounds of wool used.	2,094 182,982 45,600 10,850 964 34,013 34,861 318 8,947 5 4 1 73,667 1,287,000 7 3,560,000 7 3,560,000 7 4,560,000 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Claimere and Angora goals. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Barels of flour made. Bushels of cora ground. Saw-Mills. Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS. Breweries. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Pounds of wool used.	2,084 182,982 45,600 10,850 904 84,013 84,013 8,401 173,664 173,690 1,287,000 1,287,000 1,017,16 819,114,688
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Claimere and Angora goals. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Barels of flour made. Bushels of cora ground. Saw-Mills. Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS. Breweries. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Pounds of wool used.	2,084 182,982 45,600 10,850 34,061 34,061 34,061 313 34,061 313 3,604 73,664 3,801 1,287,000 10,716 5,500,000 10,716 5,570,839 34,570,200
Wine, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Claimere and Angora goals. Hogs. IMPROVEMENTS. Grist-Mills. Steam-power Water-power Barels of flour made. Bushels of cora ground. Saw-Mills. Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS. Breweries. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Per annum, gallons. Woolen-Mills. Pounds of wool used.	2,084 182,982 45,500 10,850 964 84,013 84,08 8,467 1 73,664 8,801 1,267,000 1,267,000 101,716 819,316
Wife, gallons. LIVE-STOCK. Horses. Mules. Total number horned cattle Sheep. Total number horned Sheep horner Total number horned Sheep horner Total number horned Bushels of corn ground. Sheem power Water-power Lumber sawed, feet. Shingles made. MISCELLANEOUS.	2,084 182,982 45,600 10,850 34,061 34,061 34,061 313 34,061 313 3,604 73,664 3,801 1,287,000 10,716 5,500,000 10,716 5,570,839 34,570,200